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Accreditation Overview

Welcome

Welcome to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce Accreditation application program. We are excited that you are
interested in standing out from the crowd and moving ahead. We want to help your through the Accreditation
process by explaining our procedures, walking you through the steps to complete the materials, and clarifying
what you can expect from us.

The Accreditation Application is divided into nine sections with a complete set of instructions at the beginning
of each one. If you have already completed a section and you are familiar with the instructions, click on the
Governance Overview icon in the Bookmark Section to the left of your screen. Otherwise, the background and
instructions should be reviewed in detail starting with the Accreditation Overview, below.

Accreditation History

In 1964, the U.S. Chamber of Commerce began offering its Accreditation Program to state and local chambers
of commerce nationwide. The program was designed to provide a continuous self-analysis of an organization’s
growth and development, with an opportunity for the organization to reassess its objectives and resources,
program of work, procedures, and achievements. Since the Accreditation program’s launch, more than 750
chambers have met the required organizational standards and have earned the title “Accredited.”

Accreditation means that a local or state chamber of commerce has been recognized by the U.S. Chamber of
Commerce for having sound programs and organizational procedures and for continually creating and
maintaining positive change in the community.

The U.S. Chamber Accreditation program establishes criteria for judging the quality of performance for state
and local chambers of commerce, determines the extent to which organizations meet these criteria, and issues
a public announcement that organizations are found to be of superior quality.

The U.S. Chamber understands that state and local chambers are diverse and have unique programs of work,
operations, merit, dues structure, and program policies. As a result, the Accreditation program has separated
the state chamber Accreditation process from the local chamber Accreditation process. Distinct applications
have been created to recognize these differences.

Accreditation does not mean that an organization is perfect in every respect. Competent examiners
acknowledge the quality of an organization and make recommendations where there are areas of deficiency
and recognize chambers for areas of special distinction.

Effective chambers of commerce operate above and beyond minimum standards. As each chamber prepares
its Accreditation application, it seeks ways of improving its performance in the community. These criteria or
standards become a tool for management control and self-discipline.



Mission

The mission of the Accreditation program is to establish a standard of organizational competency and an
objective set of criteria for assessment. The achievement of standards by state and local chambers as
determined by an examining committee will be recognized with Accreditation by the U.S. Chamber of

Commerce.

Procedures to Apply

Make Sure Your Chamber is Entered into the Accreditation Database

We want to make sure you are properly entered in our database. If you have not yet entered your contact
information, click here http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/intent.htm and follow the steps.
Upon receipt, U.S. Chamber staff will enter the information into a database, allowing the applicant chamber to
receive updates about the Accreditation process and invitations to conference calls discussing the application

process. Do not send the program fee at this time.

If clicking the link doesn’t work, make sure your computer is set up to access the Internet and try again. If you still
experience difficulty, call Mathew Wasserburger at (202) 463-5821.



Access the Application Documents

There are nine sections of the Accreditation application:

. Governance

. Finance

. Human Resources and Staff
. Government Affairs

. Program Development

. Technology

. Communication

. Facilities

. Benchmarking

OCoOoONOOTU A WNH

Copies of all nine sections of the Accreditation application can be found on our Web site at
http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/app.htm

These files can be completed by one person at the chamber or distributed to other chamber staff or volunteers
to assist in the ultimate completion of the application.

To assist in distributing the files, chamber staff or volunteers may go directly to the web site to download the
sections of interest to them.

No matter how many staff members or volunteers are working on the application, the chamber’s designated
staff contact person should be the only one to communicate with the U.S. Chamber staff.

Review the Application

Review the application in its entirety — all nine sections — to determine whether the chamber is prepared to
begin the Accreditation process. Use the glossary at the end of the each file to familiarize yourself with the
language of the application. Glossary items can also be accessed by clicking on highlighted text. In the
glossary a link is provided to return to the highlighted text.

Complete the Application Documents

Each applicant chamber is required to complete all nine sections of the Accreditation application.

Each of the application’s nine sections is a self-contained document including:

« Application instructions and overview

» Section’s standards as defined by the U.S. Chamber

« Alist of minimum qualifications to achieve Accreditation for that section
» A checklist of attachments

« A digital application from

The digital application form is divided into two categories; the minimum requirements which must be met for
the chamber to be Accredited, and the additional criteria which will be evaluated to determine the star ranking
of an Accredited chamber.



Complete the Conclusion and Signature Page

The Conclusion and Signature Page can be found on our Web site
http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/app.htm. The U.S. Chamber requires that these pages
be completed digitally, then printed and signed by the Chief Paid Executive and Chief Elected Officer.

Prepare the Application Materials for Delivery

Copy the nine pdf files and the conclusion page and signature page to a CD or USB drive. Print and sign the
completed Conclusion and Signature Pages, and enclose the payment form with a signed check or credit card
information for $699 for U.S. Chamber members; $1,199 for non members.

Mail the Application Materials to the U.S. Chamber

The application materials should be put into an envelope with the completed Conclusion and Signature Pages
and the payment and mailed to:

U.S. Chamber of Commerce
c/o Political Affairs and Federation Relations, Accreditation
1615 H Street, NW
Washington, DC 20062-2000



U.S. Chamber of Commerce Review Process

Review

Once the completed application and program fee have been received, U.S. Chamber staff will review the
chamber’s submission for minimum requirements. Due to the volume of applications received, we ask that you
please do not contact the U.S. Chamber to inquire about the status of the chamber’s application. In the event
that minimum requirements have not been met or there are missing materials, U.S. Chamber staff will contact
you.

An experienced Accreditation consultant will review the application and make recommendations. The
consultant may contact the applicant to ask questions that might arise during the review. Based on the
findings, a confidential report with recommendations will be prepared and sent to the Accrediting board, the
governing body of the Accreditation program made up of business and chamber executives. The Accrediting
board will review the recommendations and approve or disapprove the chamber’s Accreditation status.

Recommendations will be presented to the Accrediting board at the February, June, and November board
meetings. The day following the Accrediting board meeting, the applicant will be notified about the chamber’s
Accreditation status.

Awards

All Accredited chambers must meet the minimum requirements for each section of the application. If the
applicant completed the additional criteria sections of the application, the Accreditation consultant will review
the additional material and designate the chamber as Accredited, Accredited with 3-Stars, Accredited with 4-
Stars, or Accredited with 5-Stars based on the number of additional criteria points scored in each sections of
the application. A chamber earning at least 70% of the total number of points will be awarded Accredited with
3-Stars; 80%, Accredited with 4-Stars; 90% or more, Accredited with 5-Stars.

Post Accreditation Materials

Upon receiving Accreditation, the chamber will receive a marketing kit with the following:

» Letter of congratulations from Tom Donohue, U.S. Chamber President and CEO
* Press release

» Certificate of achievement

*+ Recommendations for improvement

+ Sample newsletter articles and Web page blurbs

+ Camera-ready logos

* U.S. Chamber of Commerce resource guide

Each chamber receiving Accreditation will be acknowledged on the U.S. Chamber’s Web site.

Maintaining Accreditation

To maintain Accreditation, a chamber must submit an Accreditation application every five years. Chambers will
receive an email from U.S. Chamber staff during the fourth year of Accreditation. It will remind them of the
need to renew and provide links to the materials required for the renewal.



Confidentiality

The U.S. Chamber agrees to maintain the confidentiality of information received throughout this application
except in cases where (1) the information is or becomes publicly known from sources other than the
application itself (2) the information is received by the U.S. Chamber without restriction from a third party (3)
the information is independently developed by the U.S. Chamber, or (4) the information is disclosed by the
U.S. Chamber pursuant to judicial action.



Tech Support

Navigation

The Accreditation application uses bookmark navigation to assist the applicant in navigating the application.
Please note that the pages of this file are divided in two. The left-hand side presents “bookmarks” that can be
used to take you directly to specific pages in the document. Clicking on the triangle beside the bookmarks will
“open them up” and provide you with a more detailed set of bookmarks for the section.

If you have had no experience with this type of navigation, give it a try and become comfortable with it before
going on.

Completing Each Section

“Yes/No” Radio Buttons

Radio buttons — II1 — are used for “yes/no” questions. If you inadvertently click a “yes” button, you can
change your answer by clicking on the “no” button, and vice-versa. Radio buttons are also used to “check off”
items on a list. If you inadvertently click a “check off” button, you can change your answer by clicking it a
second time.

Short Answers

Space is provided to enter short answers. For example, the question, “In which government jurisdiction is the
chamber’s incorporation or charter filed?” should be answered like this:

Washington, D.C.

In some cases, the answer may exist in another file. It can be copied and pasted into the text box.

Where the answer is best provided by entering the entire file, the file can be attached, see below.

Attachments

In each section you are required to provide Attachments to support the application. Instructions for making
the Attachments follow. Note that you can terminate the process before it is complete by pressing the escape
key (ESC).

Digital files

If the attachment is a digital file in a common format (Microsoft Word, Excel, Powerpoint; Adobe Acrobat pdf,
etc.), the file can attached electronically. Each attachment has an “attachment area” that looks like this:

Attachment:

A reminder of the instructions to attach a file can be accessed by clicking the ? icon.



Steps for Making Attachments

1. Go to the menu at the top of the screen. It looks like this:

Adobe Reader File Edit WView Document Tools Window Help

2. Click on “Tools” and a drop-down menu will appear. It looks like this:

Comment & Markup [
Select & Zoom »
Measuring [
Typewriter »
Object Data [

Customize Toolbars...

3. Drag the cursor over the words “Comment & Markup” to show the next drop-down menu. It looks like
this:

v Sticky Note
[®] Text Edits >
Stamps >
2] Highlight Text Tool
] Underline Text Tool
\ # Cross Qut Text Tool
/2 Attach a File as a Comment
i~ Record Audio Comment
& Paste Clipboard Image as Stamp Tool
Eh, Callout Tool
[Z] Text Box Tool
> Cloud Tool
* Arrow Tool
/" Line Tool
[1 Rectangle Tool
O oOval Toaol
¢* Polygon Line Tool
< Polygon Tool
7 Pencil Tool
& Pencil Eraser Tool
: Show >

Show Comment & Markun Toolbar

4. Click on the line “Attach a File as a Comment.” The arrow points to it. Click anywhere in the “Attachment
Area” to trigger your computer’s operating system to open.

5. Find the file you want to attach and click on it.



6. Click on the “Select” button at the bottom of the window in your operating system and a new window will
appear that looks like this:

| Appearance General | Review History

Icon Color: |
i Graph Opacity:
§

¥ Attachment

&

T Locked ] Make Properties Default (" Cancel f 0K ‘

7. Click on the “Paperclip” icon, and click the “OK” button.

A “Paperclip” will appear in the “Attachment Area.” Clicking on this icon will open the file you have attached. If
you want to unattach the file, select the icon with your cursor and hit the delete key.

Printed Files

If your document is in printed form and no digital copy is available, it can be converted to a pdf file by having
it scanned. Converting printed files to digital format is the best way to deal with these attachments.

If you cannot have the file scanned, you can send it to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce in its printed form. The
U.S. Chamber will have it scanned at attached to your application document for a fee of $1.00 a page.

Essays

Space is provided to enter essays. They must be as thorough as possible and the space will expand to
accommodate essays of up to 1,000 words. Each essay response must be as thorough as possible.

The space can accommodate text only. If your essay already exists in a digital format, you can save time by
including it as an attachment. If you would like to include tables, charts, or graphs in this section as a way to
better clarify or enhance the essays, you can put them into a digital format and attach the file.



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQS)

Q

We have documents that we think the U.S. Chamber of Commerce should review but there is no place for
them to be attached in any of the sections.

An area has been provided at the end of Section Nine — Benchmarking — where additional attachments
can be made. Please note that the U.S. Chamber of Commerce will review these items but may not
include them in the basic scoring of the application. However, if the material is noteworthy or exemplifies
an industry best practice, it may be eligible to receive discretionary points that may affect the chamber’s
star rating.

There are places where we would like to add a comment but there is no text box available.

Generally speaking, text boxes are made available where additional information is needed to determine
the chamber’s level of compliance. However, if an applicant would like to insert more information, the
applicants can always use Adobe Acrobat Reader’s “Sticky Note” feature to insert a comment anywhere in
the application forms. To access this feature click on the Tools menu at the top of your screen and slide
the cursor down to “Comment and Markup.” A list of features will appear with “Sticky Note” at the top.
Click on the “Sticky Note” icon then move your cursor to the place in the document where you would like
to make a comment. Click again and the “Sticky Note” will appear. Write your comment in the space
provided then click anywhere in the document to continue.

Completing the forms is time-consuming. Will we have to redo everything when it is time to renew our
accreditation?

The set of nine pdf files should be kept in a safe place, with backup copies available elsewhere. At
renewal, use the original set of pdf files, make changes only and save them under a new name, e.g.
Section One — Governance 20??. This new set of files is then sent to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce for
review. No need to completely redo the forms.

We have very large files on separate media and cannot attach them to a pdf file.

These files can be submitted on separate media (CDs, DVDs, USB drives, etc.) and enclosed in the same
envelope used to send the nine sections to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce and the Accreditation fee. A
note should be included to indicate what the files are and the section of the application forms to which

they apply.



Q Can more than one person be involved in completing the forms? How would this be done?

A

While it is best for one person to coordinate the process and serve as the communicator with the U.S.
Chamber of Commerce, many chambers will want to involve more than one person. Chambers will often
distribute the pdf file for certain sections to specialists who are responsible for completing them. For
example, Section Two — Finance may be given to the CFO who completes it and sends it back to the
person coordinating the application for the chamber.



Standard

An Accredited chamber defines the architecture of its governing system. There is a clearly developed
purpose and mission statement that is shared by board members and staff alike. The organizational
structure is defined and the board of directors and staff are clear about their roles and responsibilities.

1. Governance

Minimum Qualifications

Articles of incorporation or charter
Mission statement: clear and feasible
Bylaws:

o
o

o
o

Regulate the fundamental areas of chamber structure and operation

Are adequate for the laws of the state and the protection of both the organization and its
members

Have been shared with the board

Have been reviewed by legal counsel

Organizational structure

e}

o
o

Organizational chart(s) are clear and appropriate to the chamber’s size, structure, and
goals

Organizational chart(s) depict proper flow of information, hierarchy, and subsidiaries.
Each component of the organizational structure is assigned to staff

Functional board of directors: term limits and job descriptions in place
Board meetings: held on a regular basis and minutes retained

Review process exists to evaluate performance of officers and directors
Proper committee descriptions and structure in place

Required Attachment Checklist

=0 =1 =n =1 =1 =x =1

A1.1
A1.2
A13
A14
A15
A16
A17

Current articles of incorporation or charter

Bylaws

Organizational chart(s) with staff assignments

Sample job description for the board of directors

Minutes for the three most recent board meetings

Board evaluation form or board evaluation criteria

List of chamber committees and a description of their purpose

Additional Material Attachment Checklist

O]
[

A18
A19

Orientation program for the board of directors
Committee support materials or orientation material



Section 1. Governance Minimum Requirements

A. Articles of Incorporation or Charter

1. In which government jurisdiction is the chamber’s
incorporation or charter filed? Wisconsin

O] A1.1Attacha copy of the current articles of incorporation or charter.

Attachment : &

B. Mission

1. Provide the chamber’s mission statement.

The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce exists to provide leadership and to serve and represent our members so
their businesses and our community will prosper.

Does it clearly state what the chamber is, what it does, for whom, and where? m] Yes [ ] No
How often is the mission statement reviewed by the :

board or other governing body? Biannually

C. Bylaws

1. Do the bylaws mention the following?

a. Limitation of methods (e.g., do the bylaws follow laws of the state to protect the [m] Yes [_] No
chamber and its members?)

b.  Board term limits and attendance policies m] Yes [ ] No
c. Quorums required for board, executive committee, committees, and m] Yes [ ] No
membership meetings. )
d.  Method of board member or officer removal m] Yes [ ] No
e. Election of directors or officers, including procedures to elect and timing m] Yes [ ] No
f.  Officer duties m] Yes [ ] No
g. Indemnification’ of officers and directors m] Yes [ ] No
h.  Membership qualifications criteria and membership categories m] Yes [ ] No
i Dues, resignations, delinquent accounts, and expulsions m] Yes [ ] No
j.  Fiscal year m] Yes [ ] No
k.  Auditing procedures and audit requirements m] Yes [ ] No
. Bonding requirements’ m] Yes []No
m. Parliamentary procedures or rules of order m] Yes [ ] No
n.  Dissolution clause” m] Yes []No
o. Procedures for amendments m] Yes [ ] No
Has each board member received a copy of the bylaws? m] Yes [ ] No

Has legal counsel reviewed the bylaws in the last five years? m] Yes [ ] No



MTICLES oF 1NCoRrOnATION
S of
CUATHETY OF COMENCE OF OSNKOSH, WIsconsT.,

Know all men by these presenkts, Lhat the nndersipgned, adnlt residents of Lhe

state of Wisconsin, do hereby maiin, sipgn and agree Lo Lhe follewing: Articles of

corpnration for the purpose of forming a corporation under the laws of the states
isconsin. . =

Article 1. Mame & Location.

The name of Lhis corporation shall be Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce located at
Oshkosh, Wisconsin.

Article IT. Object.

The object of the corporation shall be the interchange of ideas and the
formulation of thoughts and conclusions to the end of securing concerted action
upon matters concernirg the welfare of the eiby of Oshkosh; using such means ag
may be best calculabed to promote Lhe inlerests and rights of its membership and
the inhabitants of Oshkosh and vicinity. The corporation shall be without capital
stock and no dividends or pecuniary profits shall be declared to the members there-
of. The corporalion may acquire and dispose of real estale and personal property
and do all things needful op necessary to carry oub Lhe purposes of Lhe corpor-
ation.

Article 11T, Hembership,

Any male person of gnod characber shall be eligible Lo membership in this
Association.,  Any person may become a member of this association by filling out
in due form Lhe application hlank provided by the Doard aof Directors and dnly
recommended by two meombers in rood standing, provided his application is favor-
ably acted upon by the Board of Directors and accapled by a majority vote of the
associalion at any regnlar or staled meeting and Lhe payment of such fees and
dues as are provided for in Lhe by-laws of Lhe corporation.  The membership of
the corperalion shall bLe subjret Lo such classificalions, regnlations and limita-
tions as may be provided in Lhe by-lavs and rules of order. Hembers gnilty of
improper conduct may be suspended or expelled by the Doard of Directors after due
hearing an provided by hy-law,

Arbicle 1V, Board of Direclors.

The movaroment af the cerporation shall Le vested in a Board of Directors
censisting of Courteen members, which shall have charge of anrd he responaible for
all the property and funds of the azsocialion and shall control, manage, and con-
fduct Lhe financial alffairs of the assecialion. This board shall judge of Lhe
nnalifications of applicants for membership and shall recommend to Lhe association
Tor Lheir ardoplion suech by-lawa, rules aned repulalions as Lhey may deem axpedient
and necessary for Lhe government of Lhe associalion and lor carrying on iks busi-
ness.  They shall elech a Secretary and Cix his salary, who shall after slechbion
be ex-officio Lhe fourteenih member of Lhe Board of Directors. They shall have
Lhe power to i1 any vacanecy in any office or in bheir own hoard, which may eccur
by removal, dealh, or resimation for such period as may intervens between such
vacancy awl the next regular mlection of Lhe association. They shall appoint
felegabes Lo deliberale ratherings and shall do all such things as are caleulaled
Lo Lenefit and promolae i abjecls of Lhe association,

The bnard ahall hold regular monthly meetings at such Lime and place as may
be appoinbed by hy-law oy resolubion and shall hold special meetings upon call of
the President and Secrotary of the assecialion or upon petilion of [ive menbers.
Fight members shall constibule a quorunm,





Article V.  Firsl HeeLingg and Provisional Boarrl,

The Fiest menbing For Lhe alochion of olfia
hedel one Lhee Whired Tharsday in Apri b, 1908 Al Lhe Cily Hall, Oshles
al 730 PMe O The Provisional Doard o 1y veves by
herein mentioned, shall eonsish of Lhe o) Lewaing

ers of Lhe corporation nhall be
h, Hinennnin
Lo el anbi L Lhe Tivsl meeting
nameel persons:

Grn, M, Paine

Ao BL Krippenn
llenry Dahde
FLovin Sehribore
Pr, H, F. CorbatlL
W, . Fdwarrsg

. A, Puckslarsg

A H. Sapgn
Fedward N, Crann
T. 5. Whikely
W, N. Badnm

B. A, Lull

Win. Mainland
B. T. Davis

Avticle VI, Annual leel.ing.

The annual mecling of Lhe asnoeiation shall be held on
April of each year, at rooms providad by Ehie Director
Lime Lhe officers aned directors of Ll associalion
are provided Tor in Lhe.by-1lavs of the asg
mallers of bnsiness
shall have power Lo

the Lhiird Tuesday in
s for that pnrpose, at which
chall deliver such reporls as
socialion ael ablend to sneh obher

As may properly come before Lhe association. The Aassncinbion
Anlermine by hy-lay Lhe manner and mebhod of any Lemporary
change in Lhe Lime for Lhe annual mecling.

Article VIL. Offigers of Lhe Associalion.

The offienras of Lhe association shall eonsist of a President, First and
Sneond Viee-Iresidonls, Treasurnr, and Secrebary, who shall be nx-afficio. The
Exeentive Commitloe of Lhn associaLion, Thase officars and nine obther members
snlecled by Lhe assoeialion shall eonstilule Lhe Board of Diveslora. Nine
membars of Lhe Doard of D reclors nxelnsive af Lhe rernalar ol flenrs shall he
divided inlo Lhree elaasns ol Lhree sach. AL Lhe Fivsl ammal menling of Lhe
associalion one sel of Lhiree memhars shall be alealed for on Leim of onn year:
anelLhar Tor Lwo years and a Ll el For Lhree years; Lherpafber Lhene directorn
shall be selechod by Lhe associakion sach year for a Leim of Lhree yeara.  Those
officers and direclors wilh Lhe exeeplion of the Seernkary shall be neminabed as

provided by by-Taw and eonlivmed by vale of Lhe Aaanociation.  The dulicra of Ehe
officers of Lhe ansonialion shall ba as etnomerabed below and such ollier rdnlkies
as 1s wsual Lo Lhe several respeelive officars avl as may be provided by tLhe

associakion in iks by-laws and riles, The President, shall
ings of Lhe Asmocialienm and Ehe Doard of Divaclo
vision over Lhe aflfajrs

dulies of Lhe Pregident,

preside abk all meet-
1 anel shall have general super-
ol the assoeistion.  The Viee Mresidenls shall assume Lhe

in his absence,

The Secratary shall keep Lhe recorls of the a
proceadings ol Lha Noard of Directors and all sl
charpga of Lha Seal anel reanvids and shall b Lhe paneral manager Lor Lhe assn-
ciakion, The Treasarer shatl reanive Lhieongl Lhe Secreabary all moneys anl shall

keep shriet acconunl of Lhe same mrl pay oul moneys npen proper orler of Lhe
Prasident, and dnerelary.

gaocialion and shall record Lhe
Anding commilLbees, e shall have

Arlicle VIIT.  fnerdment,

These arbicles ma

v b mmendad s, Ay mealing o
Irash onn-hall wf

its members by a vole of al

hervennlo ool

Lhie membors ol Ly rorporabion,
o s and sesls Whia 1000 tay or

Gieo, 11, Paine
T. 3. Hhikely
Menry Daotrle

F.o . Tall
Lowis Sebribar
G AL Pankslare
M. K. Carbakh
Ao Tl Bape

el T, lavig

In wilness whereof we have
n(‘.]rf ember, 1907,

Wm. Mainland

R. M, Fduards
. F. Worden

5. lleyman
Chas. Mevitt

A B Krippene
Felward 11, Crane
W, A. Nade





Slate of Wisconzin ) -
County of Winnebage ) °°

Personally came before me Lhisz 1204 day of Seplember,
Gino. U, Paine, T. 3. Whilely, lanry Delrele, k. A, Lull, Louia Sehribar, G. A.
Puckatars, M, R, Corbett, A, H. Sagge, el T. Pavia, Wi, Mainland, R, I, Elwards,
F. B, Viorden, 5. Heyman, Chan. Hevitt, A, ., Krippene, Flward M. Crane, W, A,
Dacde, to me known Lo he Lhe persons who execubed Lie foregoing instroment, and
Acknowledged the same for Lhe intenls and purposes herein specified.

1907 Lhe above named

Charles 1. Williams
Holary Publie, Wisconsin

(Mo Lary Seal) Hy commission expires Sept. 19th 1909

Stale of Wisconsin )
County of Wimebago ) °°

Louis Schiriber and Buel T, Davis i
say, thab he is one of tha original
thal. Lhe above and Torrpoing in
dnclarabion Al arLiclns

wing duly swern, each for himself doth
sirners of Lhe deelaration and articles,

A complale, Lrne awd correct copy of the original
and Lhe wholn Lhereof,

Louis Sehriber
Buel T, Davis

Subzeribind aned sdorn Lo beforn mo 1Lhis 1240 day of SepLember 1907,

Charles . Williams
Hotary Publie, Wisconsin

(Motary Seal) Hy commission expires Sephb. 19th 1909

iled Skatas of Americea,

Shale of Wiseconsin )

Department of State ) °°

To ALL to Whom Lhese Presents Shal) Come, Greebing:

I, J. AL Frear, Secretary of Slale of Lhe Gtale of Wiseon
eerlify thal Lhe original arlicles of organizaLion of Lhe Oshkosh Chamber of
Commerce of which ihe hereto allached g a duly verifind copy, were on Lhe 9Lh
day of Oclaber A. D, 1907, accepled amd filed in Lhe Department of Stats, In
Testimony Yheroof, I have herenmnbo sel my hand and aflixed my offieial seal al,
the Capitel, in Lhe G Ly of Maldison, thig OLh day of Oclober A. D, 107,

sin, do hereby

(Greretary Ao T, Torpe

of lhlale Assislanl, Seerebary of Shale
Uvml)

ac. For Reoongd
Oatl,, 10 - 107
ab 2:h5 AN,

st Saray Register,





ARTICLES OF MERGER

ARTICLE I.

The Plan of Merger between Oshkosh Area Chamber of Commerce,

‘and Associated Industries of Oshkosh, Iuc., ig ag follows;

A, The names of the corporations Proposing to merzge are,
Tespectively: OSHKOSH AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, INC., and
ASSQCIATED INDUSTRIES QF OSHEOSH, INC., which corporations
shall merge into O5HKOSH ARTFA ASSOCIATION OF MANUFACTURERS

AND COMMERCE, INC., hereinafter designed "THE SURVIVING

s

CORPORA TION™.
B. The terms and conditions of the preposed merger, are .,aa
follows:- .
I, That the merged asgociation be etatfed by the

IExecutive Viee-President and ap Aszociate Executive Vice-
President, There shall be two (2) divisions, a mamtfacture rs

division headed by the Associate Executive Vice-President, and

& commercial division,

% That the top policy making body of the merged
assaociation be a Board af Directors consisting of twenty-four (24)
members: eight (8) shall ba elected each year for a term of three (3)

years. The initial Board shall consist of twelve (12) membexs from

each division, who shall be elected by members of the respective

i





divisions. Thereafter, the Board Members shall be elected
according to the provisions of the By-Xaws of the mergoed
asgociation.

e | That each division of the merged agsnciation
will submit annually to the Board of Directors, ite own budge&.

4. | That all present privileges and gervices to
area members of the Chambeyr of Commerce and Assaciated
Industries be continued, That the preecent confidential nature
of the industrial furvey of employment practices, individus]
member assistance, and statistical reports and swinmaties be
contivsued, and that such continuation be assured threugh
PIoper provisions in the By-Laws,
£ The respective interests and rights of members of the

constituent corporations in the surviving corporation, are as follows:-

y Repular Mgmbership_._

The active membexship shall congist of two
clagses of members which shall be known ae "regular membership!
and "honorary membership", Axny htdividual, corporation,
pPartnership or any other entity of good 2tanding interested in the
pPromotion of the objectives of this organization shall be eligible
for regular membership, providing the requirements of the By-Laws

are met and an application foy regular membership is submitted

-





+

¥
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to and approved by thé Board of Directors. The By-Llawsa

shall control the requirements for regular membexrship '

and shall include provisions for the acquisition of additional
memberships by regular tnernbers, whether they be an
individual corporation, partsership or othex catity, The
number of additional memberehips availab;e shall be determined
b); a forrula which shall pe promulgated by the Bonrd of
Directors, bul which shall in no event exceed ten (10) including
the original regular member. Such additional memberships
may be assigned by the acquiring member to such persons
connected with the member's businege operations as may be
desired, and on written vequest to an approval by the Board of
Directors, such persons to wherm such memberships are
assigoed shall also becormne regulay mmembers of the corparation,
Each regular membership shall be entitled to cast one (1) vote
at any annual or special meeting of members or any other

membership action called for undex the By-TLaws.

Z, Honorary Mem@arshig.

The By-Laws shall provide procedures under
which honorary memberships in the Burviving corporation may be

conferred. Such honorary membership shall be without voting

righta.





D. Changes consisting of the restatement of the Axrticles of

Incoxporation of the surviving corporation shall be cffected by such

merger, as follows:-

RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

ARTICLE I.
The name of the corpoxation shall be OSEKOSH ARRA
ASSOCIATION OF MANUFACTURERS AND COMMERCE, INC.
ARTICLE 11,
The purposes for which the corporation ia organized are:

to pmeote and advance the interests, welfare and development of induatzrisl,

commercial, agricultural, professional,. economic and social interégts of the

City of Oshkosh and its surrounding trade area; to promete harmony and

u

Y general interest to the memberghip,

promotion and improvement of public relations, promotion and improvement of

employer-employee relations, promotion of cooperation between members in the

exchaunge of ideas in matters in which they bave a mutual or commeon intereast,

the encouragement of high standards of practices and usages ip business and

professional dealings; to encourage, aid and assist in the opening and development

of new business and industry in the area, to obtain balanced growth, full

employment and economic stability for the benefit of the citizenry, business firms

and governmental units of the Oshkosh trading area; to aid, promote and asgsjst

the development of area educational, civic and cultural interests; to develop





or conuected with the aforegaid objects or purposes including,
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the full potential of land and water rccreational esources for the benefit

of citizens and touristg visitors; to develop and increase c';vic: interest in
community betterment; to create and maintain a favorabls image of the
Oshkosh a.'rea. as a desirable place in which to live; and to de every other
act or acts, thiﬁg or things, incidental or pertinent to op lgrowing ouk of
but not
limited to, the acquisition, holding, and dizposition of real and personal
property.
"ARTICLE IIL.
The active membership shall consist of two claaseg of members

which shall be known as "regular membership” and "honorary membership’.

The qualifications and rights of the members of each, class of memberghip
shall be as determined by the By-ILawa.
ARTICLE 1V,
The Board of Directors of the carporation shall be constituted
and elected as provided in the By-Laws.
ARTICLE V,

The location of the principal office of the corporation iz 27-A

Washington Avenue, Oshkesh, Wisconsin 54901, The name of its Registerod

Agent at such address is LQUILS J. MICHELN.

ARTICLE VI,

The number of Directors of the corporation shall be fixed by or in

the manper provided in the By-TLawas.





ARTICLE 11.

The total number of members of the tmerging corporations with voting

rights and the number of members voting for and against the Plan of Merger

at the respective meetings of the merging corporations, which were held on

the 19th day of July, 1976, in the City of Oshkosh, Wisconsin, are as follows:

A, Oshkogh Area Chamber of Commerce, Inc.:

Total Proxies : Proxies In Person In Person
Membezrship Forx Against __For Against
558: 267 5 , 1z 4
B. Aszociated Industries of Oshkocsh, Ine, -

Total Froxies Proxies In Person In Person
Membership For Against For " Against
74 42 11 5 7

Dated at Oshiosh, Wisconsin, this l(I day of Tuly, 1276.

OSHKOSH AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, INC,

i

by et 4'*,_-';_ ';?"-’ Ry
: Pres;deng
Countersi‘gn_ed: ) . ;.
A% _,JI ,‘ *-/j -
WA ) ;’ Vy / /
/ i
"';. Secretary

ASS(?QIAI"ED INDUSTRIES OF OSHKOSH, INC,

S ol ' !
R AL R L S R
 President
Countersigned o
R ,-1" S . A
Secretary

This instrament drafted by

A v -
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A 1.2 Attach a copy of the bylaws.

D. Organization Structure

Does the chamber have a chart that depicts the organization’s governance
structure?

Does the organization chart have definitions of leadership, names of individuals,
lines of authority, and responsibility?

Is a chamber staff member assigned to each component of the organization
structure?

A 1.3 Attach a copy of the organization chart" with staff assignments.

E. Officers and Board of Directors

How many officers serve on the board?

How many directors serve on the board?

Are term limits for directors in place?

What are the term lengths and limits of the directors?

Are there detailed job descriptions (other than bylaws) outlining responsibilities and
authority of the elected officers and directors?

A 1.4 Attach a copy of a job description for the board of directors.

Are board minutes recorded and distributed to officers and directors on a timely
basis?

A 1.5 Attach the minutes from each of the three most recent board meetings.

Is there a documented (written) process in place to evaluate the performance of
officers and directors?

Attachment : &

m] Yes [ ] No
m] Yes [ ] No
m] Yes [ ] No

Attachment :

|5

| More than 36

®] Yes [ ] No

| Over 5 years

®] Yes [ ] No

Attachment :

™ Yes [ ] No

Attachment :

™ Yes [ ] No

i

A 1.6 Attach a copy of the form or criteria used to evaluate the performance of officers or directors.’

F. Committees

Are there job descriptions for committees showing purposes, goals, authority,
accountability, and reporting procedures?

A 1.7 Attach a list of the committees serving the chamber and their purposes.

Attachment :

™ Yes [ ] No

Attachment :

roT
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ARTICLE I


Name


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE I
Name

The legal and official name of this organization shall be the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce, hereafter referred to as The Chamber, a non-profit organization as defined in article 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The Chamber shall observe all local, state and federal laws which apply to this non-profit status.


ARTICLE II


Purpose


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE II
Purpose

The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce exists to provide leadership and to serve and represent our members so their businesses and our community will prosper.


ARTICLE III


Membership


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE III
Membership

Section 1.0 Eligibility


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Eligibility

Any person, association, corporation, partnership or estate having an interest in the purpose of the organization shall be eligible to apply for membership. 

Section 2.0 Classes of Membership


tc \l2 "Section 2.0 Classes of Membership

The Chamber shall recognize two (2) classes of membership, regular and honorary.


Section 2.1 Regular Members


tc \l2 "Section 2.1 Regular Members

Regular members shall include any person, association, corporation, partnership or estate having an interest in the purpose of the Chamber.


Section 2.2 Honorary Members


tc \l2 "Section 2.2 Honorary Members

The Board of Directors shall have the option of recognizing any individual as an honorary member of The Chamber.  The proposed candidate for honorary membership shall have a distinguished record of helping to promote and advance the purpose of this organization.  Designation of an individual as an honorary member shall require a two-thirds majority vote of the Board of Directors at any regular scheduled meeting.


Honorary members shall be entitled to all rights and privileges of regular membership with the exception of voting rights.  Honorary members shall not be responsible for payment of dues.  

Section 3.0 Termination


tc \l2 "Section 3.0 Termination

Any member may be expelled by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting for conduct unbecoming a member or prejudicial to the purpose of The Chamber after notice and the opportunity for a hearing are afforded the member.


Any member may be terminated by the Board of Directors, in accordance with the delinquency policy of The Chamber, for nonpayment of dues.


ARTICLE IV


Dues


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE IV
Dues

Section 1.0 Dues Amount


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Dues Amount

The Board of Directors shall have the responsibility of determining the amount of annual dues for each class and type of member.


Section 2.0 Delinquency


tc \l2 "Section 2.0 Delinquency

The Executive Committee shall have the responsibility to establish a dues delinquency policy for The Chamber, which shall be communicated to all members .

ARTICLE V


Finances


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE V
Finances

Section 1.0 Funds


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Funds

All money paid to The Chamber shall be placed in a general operating fund unless the Board of Directors establishes a special fund for a specific purpose.


Section 2.0 Disbursements


tc \l2 "Section 2.0 Disbursements

Upon approval of the budget by the Board of Directors, the President/CEO is authorized to make disbursements for expenses included in the budget without additional approval of the Board of Directors.  All disbursements shall be made by check.  Two signatures shall be required on all checks over $1,000.00. The following people shall be authorized to sign disbursement checks; Chairman, Chairman Elect, Vice Chairman, the Treasurer and the President/CEO.  Any disbursement for an unbudgeted item in an amount up to Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) shall require the approval of the Executive Committee; any disbursement for an unbudgeted item in an amount in excess of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) shall require the approval of the Board of Directors.


Section 3.0 Fiscal Year


tc \l2 "Section 3.0 Fiscal Year

 The fiscal year of The Chamber shall close on September 30th.


Section 4.0 Budget


tc \l2 "Section 4.0 Budget

The President/CEO shall have the responsibility of submitting a budget to be approved for the next fiscal year at the regularly scheduled September Board of Directors’ meeting.


Section 5.0 Annual Audit


tc \l2 "Section 5.0 Annual Audit

The accounts of The Chamber shall be audited annually as of the close of business on September 30th, by a Certified Public Accountant.  The audit shall be at all times available to the members of the organization within the offices of The Chamber.


Section 6.0 Bonding


tc \l2 "Section 6.0 Bonding

The President/CEO, and such other officers and staff as the Board of Directors may designate, shall be bonded by a sufficient fiduciary bond in the amount set by the Board and paid for by the Chamber.


ARTICLE VI


Meetings


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE VI
Meetings

Section 1.0 Annual Meeting


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of the corporation shall be held during November of each year.  The time and place shall be fixed by the Executive Committee and the President/CEO, and notice thereof mailed to each member at least ten (10) working days before the meeting.


Section 2.0 Additional Meetings


tc \l2 "Section 2.0 Additional Meetings

General meetings of The Chamber may be called by the Chairman of the Board at any time or upon petition in writing of ten percent (10%) of the members in good standing.  A notice of special meeting shall be sent to each member by telefax, United States First Class Mail, or electronic mail at least five (5) days prior to the meeting date.


The number, the time and the place of all Board of Directors and committee meetings shall be determined by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the Chair of each committee.


Section 3.0 Quorums

tc \l2 "Section 3.0 Quorums

At any duly called general meeting of The Chamber, twenty percent (20%) of the membership shall constitute a quorum.  At all Board of Directors and committee meetings, a quorum shall consist of fifty percent (50%) of the members.


ARTICLE VII


Board of Directors


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE VII
Board of Directors

Section 1.0 Composition of the Board


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Composition of the Board

The Board of Directors shall be composed of twenty-seven (27) elected and up to two (2) appointed members.  Of the elected directors, one-third shall be elected each year to serve for three (3) years. The nine (9) new members elected to the Board of Directors each year shall reflect the composition of the current membership based upon the number of members, amount of total dues and total number of full-time equivalent employees in each business sector of Manufacturing, Retail and Service. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Chamber has the authority to appoint a maximum of two (2) individuals, at large, to the Board who will serve a one year term.  The term of each Director shall commence on October 1st, continuing for three (3) years or until the Director’s successor is elected and qualified.  A Director may serve no more than three (3) consecutive terms.  A Director serving fewer than two (2) years shall not be considered to have served a term.  A Director may be re-elected after serving three (3) consecutive terms providing that such person shall not have been a Director for at least one year following the conclusion of the Director’s third term.


Chamco Inc., Oshkosh Area Economic Development Corporation (OAEDC), Greater Downtown Oshkosh Association, West Side Association, Oshkosh Arts Board, Oshkosh Safety Council, Propel and the Board Chair of the Oshkosh Convention & Visitors Bureau may each designate a representative to serve a one-year term, commencing on October 1, as additional voting members of The Chamber Board.

Section 2.0 Selection of Directors


tc \l2 "Section 2.0 Selection of Directors

Subsection 2.1 Candidates


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.1 Candidates

By the beginning of May, a notice shall be sent to the membership asking them to submit the names of proposed candidates to serve as Directors for terms of office to commence on October 1st of that year.  The notice shall direct that all such names be submitted to the Board Management & Development Committee of The Chamber on or before May 15th.  The Board Management & Development Committee shall consider all proposed candidates submitted by the membership, along with any other proposed candidate who is, owns, or is employed by a Chamber member, and shall submit a proposed slate of nine (9) candidates for Directorships to the Board for its approval on or before July 31st.  It shall be the responsibility of the Board Management & Development Committee, prior to inclusion of a candidate’s name in the proposed slate of Directors, to contact each candidate to explain the responsibilities of service as a Director, and to obtain the candidate’s consent.


Subsection 2.2 Publicity


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.2 Publicity

Following approval of the proposed slate by the Board, but by no later than August 1st, the President/CEO shall be instructed to immediately notify the membership by mail of the names of persons nominated as candidates for directors, and the right of petition for additional nominations, as provided in Article VII, Section 2.0, subsection 2.3 of these by-laws.  A list of candidates so nominated shall be kept on file in the office of The Chamber.


Subsection 2.3 Petition


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.3 Petition

Additional names of candidates for directorships may be nominated by petitions bearing the genuine signature of at least fifteen (15) members of The Chamber in good standing.  Any such petition shall be filed with the Board Management & Development Committee within twenty (20) days after the date of the notice to the membership of the proposed slate of Directors.  The determination of the Board Management & Development Committee as to the legality of any such petition shall be final.


Subsection 2.4 Determination


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.4 Determination

2.41  
If no petition is filed within the designated period, the nominations shall be declared closed and the proposed slate of nine (9) candidates shall be declared elected by the Board of Directors at its regular September meeting.


2.42  
If a legal petition is filed within the designated period, the names of any additional candidates so nominated, along with the proposed slate, arranged in alphabetical order, shall be submitted to the membership for a vote, with instructions on the ballot to vote for nine (9) candidates.  The ballot shall identify those candidates whose names appeared on the proposed slate submitted by the Board Management & Development Committee and previously approved by the Board.  The election procedure provided in subsection 2.5 shall be followed.


2.43  
Ballots shall be provided to the membership by telefax, United States First Class mail, or electronic mail on or before September 1st.  The ballot shall direct the membership to return the same to the office of The Chamber by no later than seven (7) calendars days from the date on which the ballot was sent.


Subsection 2.5 Election Committee


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.5 Election Committee

In the event of an election, as provided in subsection 2.42, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall appoint an Election Committee composed of three (3) directors whose terms expire at the end of the current Chamber year whose duty it shall be to see that the election of directors is carried out according to the terms and conditions of these by-laws, that adequate tellers are available, that all votes of the members eligible to vote are properly tallied and canvassed, and to declare the true results of said election by written report to the Board Management & Development Committee.


Section 3.0 Seating of new Directors


tc \l2 "Section 3.0 Seating of new Directors

All new Directors shall be invited to participate in the September meeting of the Board of Directors, and shall take office and be participating Directors commencing on October 1st.  The final meeting for the retiring Directors shall be the September meeting.

Section 4.0 Vacancies


tc \l2 "Section 4.0Vacancies

Vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors or among the officers on account of death, disability, resignation, or removal prior to the conclusion of a term shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining Directors, and persons so elected shall serve until the end of the unfilled term of their predecessor.


The Board shall have the power to declare a vacancy in the Directorship of any Director who is absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board, unless the Director is confined by illness or other absence approved by the Chairman of the Board.


Section 5.0 Duties of the Board.  


tc \l2 "Section 5.0 Duties of the Board.  

The primary responsibilities of the Board shall be to determine and establish the position of The Chamber on matters of public policy; to approve the strategic plan; to approve the annual operation and capital budgets; to review the annual program of work; to review and accept the annual audit report; to approve new Directors; to elect its own officers; and, through its standing committees, to determine and establish the operational policies of The Chamber; to manage the President/CEO; to manage and develop its own members; and to develop the strategic plan.  Any policies determined and established by the Board, either as a whole or through its standing committees, shall be maintained in a Chamber policy manual, which shall be reviewed annually by the Board Management & Development Committee, which shall recommend revisions to the same from time to time.


Section 6.0 Management


tc \l2 "Section 6.0 Management

The Board of Directors shall employ a President/CEO who shall be responsible for the general and active management of the Chamber.


Section 7.0 Indemnification


tc \l2 "Section 7.0 Indemnification

The Chamber shall, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide for indemnification by The Chamber of any and all of its Directors, officers or former officers or Directors against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding in which they or any of them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been Directors or officers of The Chamber, except in relation to matters in which such Directors or officers have incurred such liability and expenses because the officer or Director breached or failed to perform a duty he or she owes to The Chamber and the breach or failure to perform constitutes any of the following:


1.
A willful failure to deal fairly with The Chamber or its members


in connection with the matter in which the officer or Director has


a material conflict of interest; 


2.
A violation of criminal law, unless the officer or Director had


reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was lawful or no


reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful;


3.
A transaction from which the officer or Director derived an improper


personal profit;  


4.
Willful misconduct.


Section 8.0 Meetings


tc \l2 "Section 8.0 Meetings

The Board of Directors shall meet on at least a bi-monthly basis.  The exact time and meeting place shall be determined by the President.  In addition, special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Chairman of the Board or by the Executive Committee, or upon petition in writing of twenty-five percent (25%) of the Directors.  A notice of special meeting shall be sent to each member by telefax, United States First Class Mail, or electronic mail, at least five (5) days prior to the meeting date.  


Section 9.0 Board Member Resignation


tc \l2 "Section 9.0 Board Member Resignation

Any member of the Board of Directors may resign as a member of the Board by submitting a letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board.  At the next scheduled Board of Directors  meeting following the receipt of the letter of resignation, the Chairman shall inform the Board of the member’s resignation.  The vacancy caused by such resignation shall be filled in accord with Section 4.0 of this Article. 


ARTICLE VIII


Officers 


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE VIII
Officers 

Section 1.0 Determination of Officers


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Determination of Officers

At its regular September meeting, the Board of Directors shall reorganize for the coming year, and the Board Management & Development Committee shall present a slate of proposed officers for terms to commence on October 1st.  The slate shall include the Chairman of the Board, Chairman Elect, Vice Chairman, Past Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer.  All officers shall serve for a term of one (1) year until their successors assume the duties of office, and they shall be voting members of the Board of Directors.  




Section 2.0 Duties of Officers


tc \l2 "Section 2.0 Duties of Officers

Subsection 2.1 Chairman


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.1 President

The Chairman shall serve as the chief elected officer of The Chamber and shall preside at all meetings of the membership, Board of Directors and Executive Committee.


In addition, the Chairman shall have such duties as may be specified from time to time


in these Bylaws or in the Board policy manual. 


Subsection 2.2 Chairman Elect


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.2 President Elect

The Chairman Elect shall exercise the powers and authority and perform the duties of the President in the absence or disability of the Chairman.  In addition, the Chairman Elect shall have such other duties as may be specified from time to time in the Board policy manual.  


Subsection 2.3 Vice Chairman


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.3 Vice President

The Vice Chairman shall perform such duties as assigned by the Chairman and Board of Directors.  In addition, the Vice Chairman shall have such other duties as may be specified from time to time in the Board policy manual.


Subsection 2.4 Treasurer


tc \l3 "Subsection 2.4 Treasurer

The Treasurer shall be responsible for the safeguarding of all funds received by The Chamber and for their proper disbursement.  Such funds shall be kept on deposit in financial institutions, or invested in a manner approved by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall cause a monthly financial report to be made to the Board.  In addition, the Treasurer shall have such other duties as may be specified from time to time in the Board policy manual.


Section 2.5 President/CEO


tc \l2 "Section 2.5 Executive Vice President

The President/CEO shall be the chief administrative and executive officer.  The President/CEO shall serve as secretary to the Board of Directors, and shall cause notices, agendas and minutes of meetings of the Board to be prepared.


The President/CEO shall be responsible for administration of the program of work in accordance with the policies and regulations of the Board of Directors.


The President/CEO shall be responsible for hiring and discharging all other employees of The Chamber.

ARTICLE IX


Voting Rights


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE IX
Voting Rights

All regular members in good standing of The Chamber shall be entitled to one (1) vote. These voting rights are nontransferable.  If a member is unable to attend a general meeting of the membership, the vote may be submitted by proxy.


ARTICLE X


Committees and Divisions


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE X
Committees and Divisions

Section 1.0 Committees of the Board


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Committees of the Board

The committees of the Board shall be the standing committees enfranchised in these Bylaws, and ad hoc committees created from time to time by the Chairman.  

The standing committees shall be: Executive; Board Management & Development; President/CEO Management; Audit; and Strategic Planning, with such responsibilities and authority as set forth in these By-laws, and the Chamber Board policy manual.   The chairs and members of standing committees, other than the Board Management & Development Committee, shall be drawn exclusively from among the Directors, and shall be nominated by the Board Management & Development Committee and confirmed by the Board at its September meeting for the upcoming fiscal year.  


Subsection 1.1   Standing Committees

tc \l3 "Subsection 1.1   Standing Committees

The term of each standing committee member shall be for one (1) year beginning October 1.  A committee member so nominated may serve an unlimited number of terms. 


Subsection 1.11  Executive Committee


The Executive Committee shall be composed of the Chairman, Past Chairman, Chairman Elect, Vice Chairman, Treasurer, President/CEO, and the representatives designated by Chamco and by OAEDC to represent those corporations on The Chamber Board for the current fiscal year.  The Chairman of the Board will serve as the Chair of the Executive Committee.


The Executive Committee shall have the authority to act for and on behalf of the Board of Directors between Board meetings on matters of operational policy within the limits of the strategic plan approved by the Board, and shall, along with the CEO Evaluation Management Committee, have the authority to terminate the President/CEO.  Its additional responsibilities shall be as set forth in the Board policy manual.


Subsection 1.12 CEO Management Committee


tc \l3 "Subsection 1.12 Executive Vice President’s Evaluation & Development Committee

The CEO Management Committee shall consist of the Chairman of the Board, Chairman Elect, Past Chairman, one Strategic Planning Committee member as selected by that standing committee, and one at large Board member who shall be nominated for membership on this committee by the Board Management Committee, subject to confirmation by the Board.


This Committee shall assist the President/CEO in his or her professional development; shall develop, update on an annual basis, and recommend to the Board the job description and performance criteria for the President/CEO position; shall carry out the annual review of the President/CEO performance based on the aforesaid job description and performance criteria, which shall be contained in the Board policy manual; shall make recommendations to the Board regarding compensation for the President/CEO; make recommendations to the Board for the process for hiring a President/CEO; and, along with the Executive Committee, have the authority to terminate the President/CEO.  In addition, the CEO Evaluation Management Committee shall have those responsibilities as set forth from time to time in the Board policy manual.


Subsection 1.13 Board Management Committee


tc \l3 "Subsection 1.13 Board Management & Development Committee

This committee shall consist of at least nine (9) members, one of whom shall be a member of the Executive Committee, and all of whom shall be nominated by the Chairman of the Board subject to confirmation by the Board.  


This committee shall make recommendations to the Board of qualified persons to fill any vacancy on the Board, in any office, or in the positions of chair and members of any standing committee, unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws.  


This committee shall develop, direct the implementation of, and review from time to time the orientation, development and training process for both new and ongoing Directors.  This committee shall also be responsible to define and, from time to time, review the responsibilities of the Board and standing committees, and to assess, on an annual basis, the performance of the Directors, making such recommendations to the Board as required by the results of such assessments, including, but not limited to, a recommendation to remove a Director.


This committee shall propose the policy and process for Board meetings and perform such other duties as delegated to this committee, from time to time, in the Board policy manual. 

Subsection 1.14 Strategic Planning Committee


tc \l3 "Subsection 1.14 Strategic Planning Committee

This committee shall consist of at least twelve (12) members, including at least nine (9) Directors and three (3) members of The Chamber staff, who shall be designated by the President/CEO.  


This committee shall, on an annual basis, develop the strategic plan and recommend it to the Board; shall approve the program of work; and shall monitor the program of work.  In addition, this committee shall perform such other duties as delegated to it from time to time in the Board policy manual.


Subsection 1.15 Audit Committee


This committee shall consist of at least three, and no more than seven independent, non-compensated board members.  All members of the Audit Committee shall have a working familiarity with fundamental finance and accounting practices. Committee appointments shall be approved by the full Board of Directors upon recommendations of the nominating committee. The committee chair shall be the non-compensated elected Treasurer of the Chamber.


The Committee is responsible for financial and operational reporting, internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and ethics. While the Board of Directors has oversight responsibilities in these areas, the Audit Committee is responsible to: engage internal and external auditors; initiate investigations appropriate to fulfilling its responsibilities; retain, at the Chamber’s expense, special legal, accounting, or other consultants or experts it deems necessary in the performance of its duties; and recommend the financial auditing firm.

Subsection 1.2  Ad hoc Committees of the Board


tc \l3 "Subsection 1.2  Ad hoc Committees of the Board

Ad hoc Committees of the Board may be created by the Chairman, who shall also appoint the chair and members of any such committee, along with defining its powers, duties, and duration, all subject to confirmation by the Board.


 Section 2.0  Advisory Committees

tc \l2 " Section 2.0  Advisory Committees

In addition to the foregoing committees, advisory committees may be created from time to time by the Chairman of the Board or by the President/CEO, whose members shall be drawn from the general membership at large, which may, but need not, include one or more Directors.  The Chair and members of any such committee, along with a definition of its powers, duties, and duration, shall be determined by the officer creating any such committee.  The role of advisory committees shall be to provide advice, consultation and support to staff, as determined from time to time in The Chamber policy manual.  The term of the Chair and members of advisory committees shall be for one (1) year, commencing on October 1st.


Section 3.0  Limitation of Authority

tc \l2 "Section 3.0  Limitation of Authority

No action by any member, committee, division, employee, Director, or Officer shall be binding upon, or constitute an expression of, the policy of The Chamber until it shall have been approved or ratified by the Board of Directors. 


Section 4.0 Affiliated Organizations


tc \l2 "Section 4.0 Affiliated Organizations

From time to time, the Board of Directors may designate organizations as affiliated organizations to the Oshkosh Chamber.  In order to be an organization affiliated with the Oshkosh Chamber, the organization must be formed for a purpose consistent with and/or complimentary to the mission of the Oshkosh Chamber, as well as meet certain organizational and accounting requirements.  The current affiliated organizations are:  The West Side Association, The Oshkosh Downtown Association, The Oshkosh Safety Council, Oshkosh Arts and Propel.


Affiliated organizations shall each have one ex-officio voting position on the Board of Directors of the Oshkosh Chamber.


Affiliated Organizations shall annually be required to provide the following information to the Oshkosh Chamber.


a. Copies of Consitution and Bylaws and any amendments thereto;


b. Name and location of all bank accounts, account number and authorized signatories;


c. A copy of all meeting minutes;


d. Copies of all liabilities and contingent liabilities;


e. A copy of all receipts and cash disbursements, together with supporting documentation therefor; and


f. A list of all committee members, the officers names and addresses.


ARTICLE XI


Dissolution


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE XI
Dissolution

Section 1.0 Procedure


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Procedure

The Chamber shall use its funds only to accomplish the objectives and purposes specified in these bylaws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed, to the members of The Chamber.  On dissolution of The Chamber, any funds remaining shall be distributed to one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific or philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.


ARTICLE XII


Parliamentary Authority


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE XII
Parliamentary Authority

The current edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all questions of parliamentary procedure when such rules are not inconsistent with the Charter or Bylaws of The Chamber.


ARTICLE XIII


Amendments


tc \l1 "
ARTICLE XIII
Amendments

Section 1.0 Amendments to Bylaws


tc \l2 "Section 1.0 Amendments to Bylaws

These bylaws may be amended or altered by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors, or by a majority of the members at any regular or special meeting, providing the notice for the meeting includes the proposals for amendments.  Any proposed amendments or alterations shall be submitted to the Board or the members in writing, at least five (5) days in advance of the meeting at which they are to be acted upon.


____________________________________________________________________


Article VII, Section 8.0, first sentence, was amended on July 23, 1999 to read: “The Board of Directors shall meet on at least a bi-monthly basis.”


Bylaws were amended on September 29, 2000 that changed the titles of the officers of the Board of Directors, with the exception of Treasurer and Secretary, Chairman, Chairman Elect, Vice Chairman, and Past Chairman. The amendment also included title change of the Executive Vice President to President/CEO.


Article VII, Section 1.0 Composition of the Board, the third sentence was amended on July 25, 2008 to read: “The nine (9) new members elected to the Board of Directors each year shall reflect the composition of the current membership based upon the number of members, amount of total dues and total number of full-time equivalent employees in each business sector of Manufacturing, Retail and Service.”
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Chamber Board of Directors


Job Description


The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors have established and delegated certain responsibilities to five Board Committees listed below. While the Board has delegated certain responsibilities, it retains authority over these matters. 


Overall, the Board of Directors is responsible for:  


· Determining and establishing the position of The Chamber on matters of public policy 


· Approving the strategic plan


· Approving the annual operation and capital budgets


· Reviewing the annual program of work


· Reviewing and accepting the annual audit report


· Approving and electing Directors and Officers 


Board Committees have been created and responsibilities delegated to each to carry-out the various roles of the Board of Directors. Membership of the board committees is exclusive to Board members. The Board Committees and their respective roles are outlined below: 


1) Strategic Planning Committee: Responsible for the development and implementation of the organization’s strategic plan.


 Develop the Strategic Plan and recommend it to the Board


2) CEO Management Committee: Responsible for managing the Board’s relationship with the CEO, and through the CEO, the success of the organization.


 Develop job performance expectations, with input from the Strategic Planning Committee


 Develop and implement the CEO review process


 Evaluate CEO job performance with input from Executive and Strategic Planning Committees


 Develop the compensation package for the CEO


 Recommend the process to the Board for hiring the CEO, along with the Executive Committee, and terminate the CEO, if needed.


3) Board Management Committee: Responsible for assuring the Board and the board committees have structure, focus, membership, and educational opportunities that will support the board’s ability to discharge its responsibilities.


 Review and assess Board composition needs (expertise, constituency representation)


 Recommend board member nominees to the Board of Directors


 Evaluate performance of current board members and act upon same, if necessary


 Recommend changes in bylaws, Board Committee structure, and relationship with Chamber affiliates.


4) Executive Committee: Responsible for the conduct of board business when time constraints prohibit full board action.


 Approve operational policies within the limits of the Strategic Plan


 Communicate public policy as approved by the Board


 Recommend the annual operating and capital budget to the Board


 Review financial performance during the year


 Provide input to the CEO Management Committee on the CEO’s performance, financial and otherwise


 Develop the Program of Work


 Monitor the Program of Work and report progress to the CEO Management Committee


 Plan board education 


 Set Board Agenda


5) Audit Committee: Responsible for financial and operational reporting, internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and ethics. While the Board of Directors has oversight responsibilities in these areas, the Audit Committee is responsible to:


· Engage internal and external auditors 


· Initiate investigations appropriate to fulfilling its responsibilities  

· Authority to retain, at the Chamber’s expense, special legal, accounting, or other consultants or experts it deems necessary in the performance of its duties

· Recommend the financial auditing firm

Board Member Responsiblities


Specific responsibilities include:


· Understand and promote the mission of the organization


· Attend board meetings


· Maintain confidentiality of board meetings as appropriate


· Exercise prudence in the control and transfer of organization funds and resources


· Promote the organization in the community


· Participate in one of  the organization’s board committees


· Follow trends in the organization’s field


· Avoid acting individually on board responsibilities


· Help maintain the board’s focus on “board level” issues
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Minutes of the three most recent Board Meetings

Chamber Board of Directors
Friday, March 27, 2009
7:30 a.m.
Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce

Meeting Minutes


Present:
Tom Belter, Jack Carstens, John Casper, Connie Drexler, Andy Dumke, Bill Evans, Bill Frueh, Bob Heisler, Jim Janes, Ron Johnson, Randy Knudtson, Michelle Litjens, Jim Macy, Anne Muench, Dan Neufelder, Jeff Schmidt, Steve Schmudlach, Karen Smith, Brian Wierzbinski, Debra Wirtz, Jim Zwickey

Excused:
John Anderson, Sue Andrews, Bob Beach, Sean Fitzgerald, Dave Hansen, Bill Hare, Rick Hoppe, Stan Krangel, Earl Lawrence, Stan Leedle, Ryan Nolan, Rod Oilschlager, Tony Renning, Rick Wells

Absent:
Karen Kryzaniak

Staff:
Alice Roberts, Kelli Karpinski, Rob Kleman


Jim Janes called the meeting to order.  He introduced Bret Wallace, project manager for the Highway 41 Project with the Department of Transportation.  Bret was there to update and review the upcoming transportation improvement program along Highway 41.  This program will begin at the Highway 26/41 interchange and go through to Highway 41/Breezewood interchange.  It is scheduled to begin in 2009 with the letting of various contracts to do prep work and some land acquisition this summer and fall.  The overall project is proposed to be completed by 2015.  After the presentation, questions and discussion followed. 


In the Consent Agenda item, the January Board minutes, along with the February financial reports were presented.  A motion was made and seconded to approve items in the Consent Agenda. Motion carried.


In an office building update, Jim Macy reported on the status of the purchase of the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce office building.  Over the last several weeks, the Executive Committee entertained an offer, along with several counter-proposals to purchase the building.  Part of the contingencies on the offer related to tying in the purchase of our office building with the Chamber entering into an office condo or lease situation with the current developers of the Marion Road Redevelopment Area.  Jim Macy and John Casper met with the party interested in purchasing the building to attempt to talk and discuss issues relating to the purchase.  From the Chamber’s perspective, the Executive Committee was uncomfortable with entering into a purchase agreement without specific defined terms for an office condo or lease arrangement for an office in the Marion Redevelopment area.  Consequently, the Executive Committee believes that this current offer should not be pursued at this moment.  Discussion followed.


Jim Janes reviewed the work of the Audit Committee over the last couple of months.  An RFP was sent out to CPA and accounting firms asking for proposals to conduct the annual Chamber audit.  Seven proposals were received and reviewed by the Chamber’s Audit Committee.  Through this analysis, they are recommending that Schenck Business Solutions be recommended as the Chamber’s auditor for the next three years.  A motion was made and seconded to approve that recommendation.  Motion carried.


Next, Bill Frueh, Chairman of the Transportation Committee, reviewed a resolution asking the Chamber Board to pursue an upgrade of Highway 26 between Highway 151 and Highway 41.  The purpose of the proposed action is to provide additional highway capacity to serve existing and projected traffic volumes and to improve operational efficiency and safety for local and through traffic along this corridor.  The Transportation Committee has discussed this concept and proposal with members of the Department of Transportation and are suggesting that more study be put into developing a plan to expand this corridor, along with a bypass of Rosendale.  Discussion followed.  A motion was made and seconded to support the resolution that would expand Highway 26 to four lanes from Highway 151 to Highway 41.  Motion carried.


In another related transportation project, with the completion of Highway 41 expansion project in Oshkosh and in the Green Bay area, US Highway 41 will be built to Interstate Highway standards. Consequently, there is an effort to begin developing a consensus around the reclassification and naming of the current US Highway 41 corridor to an Interstate Highway I-55 classification.  I-55 would provide links through Chicago, St. Louis, Memphis and to New Orleans, and would be part of that Interstate route.  Communities along this segment from Green Bay through Fond du Lac are being asked to support that designation.  A motion was made and seconded to support the reclassification of the corridor to Interstate 55.  Motion carried.


The Board of Directors were asked by Wisconsin Manufacturers and Commerce to review and support their Moving Wisconsin Forward public policy agenda.  This agenda was built with input from business and various Chambers across the State of Wisconsin, including the Oshkosh Chamber Board of Directors.  Moving Wisconsin Forward is a vision for economic renewal and job creation for the State.  It includes policy statements relating to 1) investing in people, 2) promoting innovation and job creation, 3) investing in fundamentals, 4) fostering a competitive business environment, and 5) improving public systems.  Discussion followed.  There was discussion concerning with the approach that WMC was taking.  Several Board members expressed concern with that.  Overall, there was primarily agreement with many of the principles and items within the agenda; however, there was concern with the approach that WMC is taking.  After discussion, a motion was made and seconded to 1) support the WMC Moving Wisconsin Forward agenda, and 2) a letter be written identifying issues relating to the need that WMC be more aggressive in its approach as it relates to advancing a pro-business agenda.  Motion carried. 


In reports, Oshkosh Convention and Visitors Bureau: Jeff Schmidt reported that John Bermingham is a newly elected Board member.  The downtown hotel is going to be auctioned off on May 14.  Legislation relating to Wisconsin film tax credit, which was removed from the budget, and the start of the school year before Labor Day were of concern to the Bureau.  Lastly, May 7 is the Bureau’s annual Tourism Breakfast.  OAEDC: June 30 is the Public Enemies public event.  Also, there was an update on the 400 Block East Project, which will occur in summer, and is designed to rebuild the parking lot behind the east side of the 400 Block of North Main Street.  Lastly, the Board was informed that Best Buy and Micheal’s are still on track to open this year.


In other business, the Board was reminded of the Vision Oshkosh project meeting to take place after the Board meeting.


Meeting adjourned.


Submitted by,


John Casper


Chamber Board of Directors
Friday, January 23, 2009
7:30 a.m.
Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce

Meeting Minutes


Present:
Bob Beach, Jack Carstens, John Casper, Connie Drexler, Andy Dumke, Bill Evans, Sean Fitzgerald, Bill Frueh, Bob Heisler, Rick Hoppe, Jim Janes, Ron Johnson, Stan Krangel, Michelle Litjens, Jim Macy, Dan Neufelder, Rod Oilschlager, Tony Renning, Jeff Schmidt, Steve Schmudlach, Karen Smith, Brian Wierzbinski, Debra Wirtz, Jim Zwickey

Excused:
John Anderson, Susan Andrews, Tom Belter, Bill Hare, Randy Knudtson, Karen Kryzaniak, Anne Muench, Rick Wells

Absent:
Dave Hansen, Earl Lawrence, Stan Leedle, Ryan Nolan

Others:
Alice Roberts, Kelli Karpinski
Bette Lang – Oshkosh Area School District Superintendent


Superintendent of Schools Bette Lang was introduced. She was there to review with the Board the April 7 referendum concerning the Oshkosh Area School District.  Three questions will be facing the voters of the Oshkosh Area School District.  The first question is for $15 million for the new northside replacement elementary school.  The second question is to exceed revenue caps by $1.3 million for five years for a total of $6.5 million for deferred maintenance projects.  The third question is to exceed revenue caps by $500,000 for five years for small additions or renovation projects.  The total of that question is $2.5 million.  The total for all three questions is $24 million.  Bette reviewed the rationale and overall plan that the School Board adopted.  The northside replacement school would move Oaklawn Elementary School and former Sunset Elementary School attendance areas to a site on Ryf Road, which is currently owned by the Oshkosh Area School District.  That move would also include the closing of Lincoln School and move those students to Read School which current Sunset School attendance area is attending.  The deferred maintenance projects include roof repair, window replacement, furnace systems and the like.  For the third question, the School Board is working on establishing a set of priorities for those small additions and renovation projects.   After the presentation, questions followed.  Bette Lang was excused from the meeting.  The Board discussed whether to support the proposed referendum that will be on the April 7 ballot.  After discussion, it was determined that more information is needed to be provided before the Board would consider supporting the referendum.  A small group of Board members will meet with Bette Lang to discuss those issues and bring back to the Board of Directors a proposal relative to the referendum.


Under the consent agenda, the November Board minutes and the Chamber and Chamber Foundation financials were provided.  A motion was made and seconded to approve items in the consent agenda.  Motion carried.


The Vice Chairman vacancy was discussed.  Jim Macy would fill the vacated spot of the Chairman-Elect, and Ron Johnson agreed to the Vice Chairman vacancy, with Jim Macy’s movement to that new position.  After discussion, a motion was made and seconded to approve the appointment of those two officer positions.  Motion carried.


Jim Macy informed the Board of Directors that a party approached the Chamber relative to acquiring our office building.  The interested party proposed a price range that appeared to be within the acceptable range for the Chamber’s consideration.  Jim explained that there still remains a hurdle to selling our office building.  That hurdle is the relocation of Division Street to Jackson Street intersecting with Marion Road.  That project would necessitate the removal of the Chamber building.  Jim suggested that the Chamber would discuss with the City their intention as it relates to moving that street project forward.  Assuming that barrier would be removed, the interested party would most likely provide to the Chamber an offer to purchase.  Discussion followed.  After discussion, a motion was made and seconded to have the Executive Committee proceed with the potential purchase of the Chamber’s office building.  Motion carried.  Abstained, Jim Janes.


Jim Janes reviewed a position statement regarding single stream recycling that is being proposed by the City of Oshkosh administration.  Single stream recycling would allow for the complete automation of recyclable materials.  The position that is being proposed is as follows:  The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce supports and encourages the City of Oshkosh to adopt the automated single-stream recycling system with the use of appropriate containers.  However, the Chamber strongly opposes the use of general fund tax dollars when the City has the ability to properly impose a specific fee on a specific group of property tax payers who receive this benefit.  The City-provided service is for the exclusive benefit of residential property owners.  Consequently, the residential property owners should exclusively fund the purchase of these containers.  After discussion, a motion was made and seconded to support the position as proposed.  Motion carried.


The Board discussed the upcoming Spring elections.  Jim Janes suggested that the Board should engage in a future discussion relative to the possibility of endorsing and funding candidates for election for City, County and School District offices.  A proposal will be developed and brought to the Board sometime in summer for discussion and consideration.  For the near April 7 elections, the Chamber will continue its information approach in asking Council and School Board candidates to respond to specific issues and line those responses to Chamber positions.  This information would then be shared with members. 


In reports, OAEDC:  Maureen Strauss was introduced to the Board as the new BID Downtown Manager.  The Board was informed that, with Melissa Hunt’s departure, Tony Goebel would be taking on that role in a part-time basis.  Renewegy is a company that OAEDC is working very closely with in creation of alternative wind energy and high-efficiency propulsion systems.  Revolving Loan Fund is being considered to expand to be more of an entrepreneurial fund, and could be used throughout the City of Oshkosh.  Business Park, the WHG Group will be under construction of a new office sometime in spring.  Additionally, relative to the Business Park, the contract is up for renewal with the City of Oshkosh.  The Business Plan competition is currently underway.  Business plans are being submitted and being reviewed by the selection committee.  Lastly, Business Retention Committee is now being chaired by Melissa Kohn from Fox Valley Technical College.  In a Chamco update, their industrial park land sales contract is also up for renewal by the City Council.  80 acres have been purchased for the expansion of the Southwest Industrial Park.  Lastly, a community-wide progress report is being developed and will be ready for the City Manager’s State of the City Address.  Lastly, Oshkosh Convention and Visitors Bureau created a separate corporation, Convention Center, Inc.  They have a contract with the City of Oshkosh to manage and sell the Center.  March 9 is the community open house for the Convention Center. 


In other business, the Board was reminded of the upcoming Northeast Wisconsin Chambers Coalition Legislative Dialog being held on Monday, February 16 at the Radisson Paper Valley Hotel in Appleton.  The Annual Meeting is the following evening on February 17 at the Convention Center.  That will be the first event in the newly renovated convention center.  The following week on Thursday, February 26 is the annual Chamber Business Expo.  Also on February 12 is the annual Economic Outlook Breakfast featuring economist Brian Beaulieu.  The Board was provided copies of the newly released Profiles Magazine produced for the Chamber by Cumulus Broadcasting.  Board members were encouraged to participate in a national assessment survey being conducted by the local CESA 6 office.  The link to the survey will be forwarded to all Board members in the Friday report.  Discussion was held regarding the Employee Free Choice Act, which will be under consideration by Congress sometime in the upcoming legislative session.  The Employee Free Choice Act allows for the formation of labor unions without use of secret ballots.  Lastly, the proposed Badger Choice program would make it mandatory that all small businesses with between 2 and 50 employees who currently provide health insurance to purchase health insurance through the State of Wisconsin portal and the contracts that they create by providers.  If a plan like that would be enacted, it would eliminate small businesses choice of healthcare insurance companies and would in essence put the Oshkosh Chamber out of the health insurance program that we currently offer to our members through Network Health Plan.


Meeting adjourned.


Submitted by,


John Casper


Chamber Board of Directors
Friday, November 21, 2008
7:30 a.m.
Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce

Meeting Minutes


Present:
John Anderson, Sue Andrews, Tom Belter, Jack Carstens, John Casper, Connie Drexler, Bill Evans, Bill Frueh, Bill Hare, Bob Heisler, Jim Janes, Ron Johnson,  Randy Knudtson, Earl Lawrence, Michelle Litjens, Jim Macy, Anne Muench, Ryan Nolan, Rod Oilschlager, Steve Schmudlach, Karen Smith, Brian Wierzbinski, Jim Zwickey

Excused:
Jon Dell’Antonia, Sean Fitzgerald, Karen Kryzaniak, Dan Neufelder, Rick Wells, Debra Wirtz

Absent:
Bob Beach, Andy Dumke, Dave Hansen, Rick Hoppe, Stan Krangel, Stan Leedle, Tony Renning

Others:
Alice Roberts, Kelli Karpinski
Jim Stahl – Schenck Business Solutions
Jim Haney, James Buchen – Wisconsin Manufacturers and Commerce


Jim Janes called the meeting to order.  He introduced new Board members who are at their first Board meeting of the new fiscal year.  


The Board viewed the Oshkosh segment that will be appearing on the Economic Report Program  on the Fox Business News Network.


Next, Jim Janes introduced Jim Haney, President of WMC, and James Buchen, Vice President with WMC.  They were here to get feedback from our Board relative to WMC’s legislative agenda for the upcoming state legislative session.  They posed two questions to the Board:  1) What will it take to get the economy going? 2) How do we create more jobs in the State of Wisconsin?  Several issues were discussed:


· Reconcile state and federal regulations.


· Address escalating healthcare costs.


· Public versus private sector benefits.


· State budget deficit.


· Qualified economic offer.


· Property taxes.


· Minimum wage indexing.


· Punitive damage on employment discharge.


· Mandatory paid sick leave, as it relates to the referendum in Milwaukee.


· Healthy Wisconsin.


· Education, specifically the technical college system and state educational standards.


In the Consent Agenda, the September Board minutes were presented.  A motion was made and seconded to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried.


Jim Stahl, with Schenck Business Solutions, was introduced.  Jim was there to review the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Oshkosh Chamber and its affiliates.  Schenck recently completed the audit for the Chamber for 2008.  Jim reviewed that audit document with the Board.  He specifically reviewed the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Activities and Net Assets, the Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the Financial Statements.  After his review of the 2008 audit, a motion was made and seconded to accept the audit report as given.  Motion carried.


Jim Janes reported back to the Board the discussion of the Executive Committee as it relates to a proposal from Oshkosh River Development LLC for the Chamber to purchase the second floor of the proposed professional office building along the Fox River.  Jim stated that, while the proposal from the developer was very good, the Executive Committee was recommending to the Board that it is not the appropriate time for the Chamber to be purchasing other office space for its operations.  Specifically, the state of the economy was the determining factor for the Executive Committee’s recommendation.  There was consensus among the Board to wait on pursuing this opportunity.  


The following reports were given:  Bill Hare from Chamco reported that collaboration between the organizations in the community continues to be very good.  Elizabeth Hartman is back on a limited basis from maternity leave.  During her absence, Dave Omachinski has filled in that role.  Lastly, he reported that, given the slowdown in the economy, there was a small downturn in industrial projects that are being pursued.  Tom Belter, with OAEDC, reported on the E-Connect program that was held that week.  Over 200 people were in attendance.  He also informed the Board that they just closed a land sale in the Universal Business Park with Brian Wogernese.


In other business, the Board was informed that the staff is going to be advancing a membership campaign and asked for support by suggesting potential new members to the Chamber.  It was suggested that Carol Roessler be recognized at our annual meeting for her work in the State Assembly and State Senate representing Oshkosh.  Lastly, the Board was informed that WMC Business Day will be held on February 11 in Madison.


Meeting adjourned.


Submitted by,


John Casper
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Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce

Board of Directors Evaluation


January 2009

BOARD SELF EVALUATION SURVEY


(Rate each question by typing an “X” to the right of the appropriate description)


Mission


1. Each board member receives a copy of the Chamber’s Mission Statement.




		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. Proposals brought up before the Board are evaluated to insure that they are consistent with our Mission Statement.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





3. The Board insures that partnerships, programs and services are compatible with the organization’s Mission.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Strategic Planning


1. On an annual basis the Board approves a comprehensive Strategic Plan.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. The Board has a clear understanding of strategic issues facing the organization.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





3. The Board is involved in strategic planning and has provided significant input that improved or streamlined the process.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





4. The Board monitors the organization’s progress, and assesses the extent to which the Chamber achieves its strategic goals and objectives.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Financial Leadership


1. The Board reviews and adopts an annual budget and monitors performance.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. The Board monitors financial performance of programs.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





3. The Board reviews annual audit results and recommendations.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





4. The Board receives information on financial trends.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Corporate Compliance


1. The Board understands the organization’s efforts related to Corporate Compliance.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. The Board monitors management’s efforts to insure the organization is in compliance with statutes.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Management Leadership


1. Board members understand their policy-making role vs. CEO’s management role.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. The Board communicates effectively with the CEO.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





3. The Board supports the CEO in making required changes.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





4. The CEO is responsive to Board input.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





5. A committee of the Board periodically surveys executive employment arrangements at comparable organizations to ensure that our compensation and other contract conditions are reasonable and competitive.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





6. The CEO communicates effectively with the Board.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Employee Relations


1. The Chamber regularly requests employee feedback on the effectiveness of management and the implementation of the organization’s mission, vision and values.  


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. The Chamber monitors employee feedback and develops action plans in response to areas identified for improvement.  


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





3. The Chamber develops methodologies that include employee input in matters affecting their jobs.  


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Quality Leadership


1. The Board and its Committees understand and accept legal, ethical and regulatory responsibilities.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. The Board includes Chamber staff in its activities.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





3. The Board has effective means of communicating with the Staff.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





4. The Board has effective means of communicating with the membership.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Board Effectiveness


1. Board members participate in an orientation session following initial election.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





2. There is a Conflict of Interest policy and plan in place.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





3. Board members understand their roles and reporting relationships.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





4. The Board receives periodic education sessions relative to the organization’s strategic initiatives.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





5. The Board Chair leads the Board fairly and effectively.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





6. Board members receive meeting agendas in advance and come prepared.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





7. The Board Management Committee identifies potential Board members.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





8. Criteria for Board membership are clearly defined and observed.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





9. There is a process for review of key policies and procedures.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





10. The Board has a good understanding of the Chamber based on the orientation and materials they receive.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





11. Board input has significantly impacted the direction of the Chamber.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





12. The frequency and duration of Board and Board Committee meetings are adequate to conduct the board’s oversight responsibilities, but do not discourage attendance and participation by misusing valuable board member time.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





13. The Board Committees (Executive, Board Management, Strategic Planning, CEO Management & Audit) are accomplishing their intended purpose.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





14. The Board Committee that I serve on is accomplishing its intended purpose.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





15. The Board Committees (Executive, Board Management, Strategic Planning, CEO Management & Audit) are accomplishing their intended purpose.


		Strongly Agree

		

		Agree

		

		Disagree

		

		Strongly Disagree

		

		No Opinion

		





Please identify the Board Committee(s) that you are currently serving on: ____________________________________________________________________________

Other


1. Suggested topics for Board education over the next two (2) years.


2. Suggested ways to improve Board meetings.

3. Other general comments.


mark
File Attachment
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Chamber Board of Directors


Committee Structure and Its Role


Board Committees have been created and responsibilities delegated to each to carry-out the various roles of the Board of Directors. Membership of the board committees is exclusive to Board members. The Board Committees and their respective roles are outlined below: 


1) Strategic Planning Committee: Responsible for the development and implementation of the organization’s strategic plan.


2) CEO Management Committee: Responsible for managing the Board’s relationship with the CEO, and through the CEO, the success of the organization.


3) Board Management Committee: Responsible for assuring the Board and the board committees have structure, focus, membership, and educational opportunities that will support the board’s ability to discharge its responsibilities.


4) Executive Committee: Responsible for the conduct of board business when time constraints prohibit full board action.


5) Audit Committee: Responsible for financial and operational reporting, internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and ethics. While the Board of Directors has oversight responsibilities in these areas, the Audit Committee is responsible to engage internal and external auditors, initiate investigations appropriate to fulfilling its responsibilities and recommend the financial auditing firm.

Advisory Committees


Ambassadors: Serves as the official representatives and goodwill ambassadors for the Chamber by attending grand opening ceremonies, greeting VIPs visiting Oshkosh, participating in special events, and contacting and assisting Chamber member businesses.


Aviation Committee:  Supports, promotes and develops general, sport and commercial aviation in the Oshkosh area.


Governmental Affairs Committee:  Analyzes and informs members of issues being addressed at all levels of government and recommends to the Board of Directors positions that the Chamber should take on key business issues.


Human Resource Council: Provides a venue for human resource professionals to network and share best practices. 


Manufactures Council: Provides a venue for Chamber-member manufacturers to meet and talk, on a peer-level basis, about items of common interest. 


Membership Committee: Focuses on prospect development, membership efforts and retention.


Partners in Education Council:  Improves the relationship between the educational and business communities; promotes private enterprise in the educational systems; facilitates and supports co-op and youth apprenticeship programs, career guidance efforts and other educational programs.


Public Relations & Marketing Committee: Develops and implements the public relations program for the Chamber.


Transportation Committee:  Identifies transportation needs of the community in an effort to improve inter/intra-city transportation systems that support and enhance business and economic development.


mark
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Section 1. Governance Additional Criteria

A. Vision and Values

Provide the following if applicable:

a. The chamber’s vision statement"

The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce is the foremost voice for the business community. As the area’s leading

business association, we actively engage our members and community to be the driving force for community

progress. We are an indispensable resource and serve as the community’s business advocate. We collaborate
regionally to promote growth in Oshkosh and Northeast Wisconsin, while adhering to the highest standards of
professional excellence and integrity.

Vii

b. The chamber’s values statement

N/A

How often are the vision and values statements reviewed —
by the board or other governing body? Biannually

B. Officers and Board of Directors

Is the board representative of the business community? m] Yes [ ] No
Is there an annual board and leadership orientation program? m] Yes []No
A 1.8 Attach a copy of the orientation program for the board of directors.  Attachment :

Are board members trained to consistently and clearly act as advocates of the m] Yes [ ] No
chamber and to speak for the chamber in the public arena?

Are board members recruited according to specific needs? m] Yes [ ] No

How are board members recruited? (Check all that apply)

[C] E-mail or mail invitations [C] Personal invitations

[O] Leadership training opportunities [ ] Web site

[ ] New member orientation [ ] Other

Are background checks performed for prospective board members? []Yes [m] No
Are references checked for prospective board members? [ ]Yes [m] No
Is there an interview process for prospective board members? m] Yes [ ] No
Are there contractual agreements with board members? m] Yes [ ] No

Is there a process for the dismissal of an ineffective board member? m] Yes [ ] No



		[image: image1.wmf]

		Board Orientation


10/23/08

Noon – 1:15

Oshkosh Country Club



		



		Meeting called by:

		Jim Janes

		Type of meeting:

		New Board Member Orientation



		



		



		----- Agenda Topics -----



		



		1. Welcome & Introductions of New Board Members 



		Jim Janes, Chairman of the Board of Directors 

		Noon 



		2. About the Chamber – Mission, Bylaws  

3. Strategic Plan

		John Casper

Jim Janes

		



		4. Board of Directors & Board Committees 

5. Responsiblities and Make-up 

		Jim Janes

John Casper

		



		6. Board Members Responsibilities

		Jim Janes

		



		7. 2009 Program of Work & Budget

8. Staff & Responsibilities

		John Casper


Kelli Karpinski, Bruce Nelson, Alice Roberts, Kathy Bermingham 

		



		9. Questions

		Board Members

		



		10. Adjourn

		Jim Janes

		1:15



		



		Other information
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Essay Question #1

Within the past two years, what innovative ideas have board members contributed that resulted in positive
change for the chamber, its members, or the community served? In a couple of paragraphs, please use the
space below to describe one to three noteworthy examples.

During our last strategic planning process three major strategic themes - 1) Economic Development, 2)
Communications, Vision and Branding and 3) Membership Services - emerged, causing the Oshkosh Chamber of
Commerce to lead new initiatives and embark on a new strategic direction for the organization.

Economic Development:

Recognizing the need to better integrate the community’s economic development activities, the Oshkosh Chamber and
its Board of Directors spent much time during the past year pursuing options for a Business Assistance Center. The
idea for the center grew out of further collaboration between the Chamber and many of its partners, including the
Oshkosh Area Economic Development Corp. (OAEDC), Chamco and complementary organizations. The new center
would expand and enhance the delivery of business assistance services and provide greater efficiency to the partners
as they share office support, equipment and facilities. The Chamber’s current office building provides limited room for
future growth for any of the partners that are now under one roof—the Oshkosh Chamber, OAEDC and Chamco. While
the Chamber’s leadership looked at several possibilities for expansion, it was most interested in being an equity partner
with Akcess Acquisition Group, which proposed office space in the Marion Road development area. The Chamber's
hope was to help Akcess launch the entire project, which would have spurred other development, including a hotel, a
restaurant and condominiums. Unfortunately, Akcess was not able to bring its vision to fruition due to the lackluster

——— e . . [ D Ao o Al momm e men mm m A bm emiimmiim mom bl mem o Lm e meeem mm A im o b o LLmm mm o mm mem ) d o b m Pem o Ll

] If the essay already exists in a file, you can attach the file in the space provided and check the box to the left.

Attachment :
Essay Question #2

How are volunteers recognized and rewarded? Please use the space below to list and describe three ideas
that the chamber uses to reward these volunteers.

Annually, the Oshkosh Chamber recognizes volunteers at the Annual Meeting & Recognition Program. At this event, the
Chamber gives out the following awards:

Alberta S. Kimball Community Service Award

Ambassador of the Year

Chamber Volunteer of the Year

Distinguished Service Award

Lynne Webster Leadership Award

PALs Award

Small Business of the Year

Stephen Mosling Commitment to Education Award

Woman of Achievement

Members are honored at this event for accomplishments and service to the Chamber and the community. Each
individual is given a plague during the Annual Meeting, an event attended by over 600 business people. Our award
winners are featured in our bi-monthly NewsWave Magazine. The local newspaper also features these individuals. We
promote these award winners on our website - http://www.oshkoshchamber.com/annualmeeting.

] If the essay already exists in a file, you can attach the file in the space provided and check the box to the left.

Attachment :



C. Committees

1. Is there a method to select committee chairpersons, vice chairs, and members? m] Yes [ ] No

2. Is there an orientation program for committee chairs? m] Yes [ ] No

3. Is there an orientation program for committee members? m] Yes [ ] No

[] A1.9Attacha copy of the committee support materials or committee orientation program only if
the documents are significantly different from board orientation. Attachment :

4, Are minutes of all committee meetings maintained? m] Yes [ ] No

How often does the chamber evaluate committee performance? [ Annually

6. How does the chamber evaluate committee performance?
Overall, the Chamber’s committee structure works well, recognizing that some committees of necessity are more
active than others. Depending of the nature of the Chamber’s annual business plan, some committees play a
more prominent role because of the direction the Chamber is taking in that particular year. Other committees,
depending upon the nature of the leadership and timeliness and purpose, are less effective and organized. Each
committee is evaluated annually as part of the strategic planning process. Chamber staff may make

7. Do committees have the option to conduct their work electronically on bulletin m] Yes [ ] No

boards, shared electronic files, etc.?
Have any committees been disbanded in the last three years? [ ]Yes [m] No

Describe the process used to determine committee dissolution.

The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce utilizes two types of committees — Board Committees and Advisory
Committees.

Board Committees have been created and responsibilities delegated to each to carry-out the various roles of the
Board of Directors. Membership of the board committees is exclusive to Board members. The process to dissolve
a Board Committee is inherent within the purview and prerogative of the Board of Directors. The Board

D. Affiliates

This section relates to affiliates"". If the chamber does not have affiliates, you may skip this section.

The term “affiliate” describes a purposeful, relatively formal relationship between the chamber and other
entities performing a wide variety of functions.

The following are examples:

* Convention and visitors bureaus * Private economic development councils
* Downtown development associations * Purchasing agents associations

* Group benéefit trusts * Research groups

* Industrial development foundations * Retail promotion groups

e Manufacturers’ councils

1. Does the chamber have affiliates? m] Yes [ ] No
If yes, answer the following:
a. Does the affiliate staff answer to chamber staff leadership? [ ]Yes [m] No
b. Are affiliates included in all financial audits conducted by the chamber? m] Yes [ ] No
C. Is the chamber board of directors the ultimate authority for decision making [ ]Yes [m] No

regarding the affiliates?



Supplementary Information

Applicants can use this page to enter or attach supplementary information not required
by the application.

Please note that the U.S. Chamber of Commerce will review the material, but does not
score supplementary information either as a part of the application process or as a basis
for designating the chamber as Accredited, Accredited with 3-Stars, Accredited with 4-
Stars, or Accredited with 5-Stars.

Supplementary information may be awarded up to five discretionary points as deemed
by the Accreditation consultant for exceptional policies or best practices.

Comments can be entered in the space below.

Additional documents can be attached here : g



Section 1. 

Governance Minimum Requirements

________________________________________________


A. Articles of Incorporation or Charter 

1. In which government jurisdiction is the chamber’s incorporation or charter filed? 

The Articles of Incorporation and Articles of Merger are attached as A 1.1.


The organization was incorporated in the State of Wisconsin.


B. Mission 

1 - 3. The Mission Statement, as outlined in the application, of the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce was developed and is used as the threshold explanation of the purpose of the organization.  Annually, the Board of Directors ensures that the program of work adopted by the Board is consistent with the Mission Statement.  The Mission Statement is reviewed annually as part of our annual planning process to determine whether it actually reflects the goals of the organizations. 

Name: The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce represents the business community in the Oshkosh urban area and adequately reflects the area served. Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce represents the Oshkosh area and not exclusively the City limits.


Mission Statement: The mission of the organization is to lead, represent and serve our membership. This meets the requirements of our 501 (c) (6) status. A ruling letter was issued in August 1939 and was subsequently reiterated by a determination letter in October 1989 granting our organization tax exempt status under section 501 (c) (6). It is reviewed every 2 -3 years when the Board conducts its strategic planning session. 

C.  Bylaws


1. Do the bylaws mention the following? The bylaws are attached as A 1.2.

a. Limitation of Method:  No specific provisions are included in the bylaws.  However, our determination letter is still effective. In article I of the Bylaws it states, “the Chamber shall observe all local, state and federal laws which apply to this non-profit status.”


b. Board term limits and attendance policies: Article VII, section 1.0 outlines Board Term Limits, “The term of each Director shall commence on October 1st, continuing for three (3) years or until the Director’s successor is elected and qualified.  A Director may serve no more than three (3) consecutive terms.  A Director serving fewer than two (2) years shall not be considered to have served a term.  A Director may be re-elected after serving three (3) consecutive terms providing that such person shall not have been a Director for at least one year following the conclusion of the Director’s third term.” Article VII, section 4.0 outlines the Board’s attendance policy, “The Board shall have the power to declare a vacancy in the Directorship of any Director who is absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board, unless the Director is confined by illness or other absence approved by the Chair of the Board.”


c. Quorums Required: Article VI, section 3.0 outlines quorum requirements for general membership, Board and committee meetings as “At any duly called general meeting of The Chamber, twenty percent (20%) of the membership shall constitute a quorum.  At all Board of Directors and committee meetings, a quorum shall consist of fifty percent (50%) of the members.”


d. Method of Board member/officer removal: Article VII, section 4.0 partially addresses removal as “Vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors or among the officers on account of death, disability, resignation, or removal prior to the conclusion of a term shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining Directors, and persons so elected shall serve until the end of the unfilled term of their predecessor.” Section 9.0 also addresses this, “Any member of the Board of Directors may resign as a member of the Board by submitting a letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board.  At the next scheduled Board of Directors meeting following the receipt of the letter of resignation, the Chair shall inform the Board of the member’s resignation.  The vacancy caused by such resignation shall be filled in accord with Section 4.0 of this Article.” 


e. Election of Directors and/or Officers: Article VII, section 2.0, sub-sections 2.1 – 2.5 address election of directors as follows, “By the beginning of May, a notice shall be sent to the membership asking them to submit the names of proposed candidates to serve as Directors for terms of office to commence on October 1st of that year.  The notice shall direct that all such names be submitted to the Board Management & Development Committee of The Chamber on or before May 15th.  The Board Management & Development Committee shall consider all proposed candidates submitted by the membership, along with any other proposed candidate who is, owns, or is employed by a Chamber member, and shall submit a proposed slate of nine (9) candidates for Directorships to the Board for its approval on or before July 31st.  It shall be the responsibility of the Board Management & Development Committee, prior to inclusion of a candidate’s name in the proposed slate of Directors, to contact each candidate to explain the responsibilities of service as a Director, and to obtain the candidate’s consent.” Subsection 2.2 Publicity – “Following approval of the proposed slate by the Board, but by no later than August 1st, the President/CEO shall be instructed to immediately notify the membership by mail of the names of persons nominated as candidates for directors, and the right of petition for additional nominations, as provided in Article VII, Section 2.0, subsection 2.3 of these by-laws.  A list of candidates so nominated shall be kept on file in the office of The Chamber. Additional names of candidates for directorships may be nominated by petitions bearing the genuine signature of at least fifteen (15) members of The Chamber in good standing.  Any such petition shall be filed with the Board Management & Development Committee within twenty (20) days after the date of the notice to the membership of the proposed slate of Directors.  The determination of the Board Management & Development Committee as to the legality of any such petition shall be final. If no petition is filed within the designated period, the nominations shall be declared closed and the proposed slate of nine (9) candidates shall be declared elected by the Board of Directors at its regular September meeting. If a legal petition is filed within the designated period, the names of any additional candidates so nominated, along with the proposed slate, arranged in alphabetical order, shall be submitted to the membership for a vote, with instructions on the ballot to vote for nine (9) candidates.  The ballot shall identify those candidates whose names appeared on the proposed slate submitted by the Board Management & Development Committee and previously approved by the Board.  The election procedure provided in subsection 2.5 shall be followed. Ballots shall be provided to the membership by telefax, United States First Class mail, or electronic mail on or before September 1st.  The ballot shall direct the membership to return the same to the office of The Chamber by no later than seven (7) calendars days from the date on which the ballot was sent.” Subsection 2.5 Election – “Subsection 2.5 Election Committee In the event of an election, as provided in subsection 2.42, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall appoint an Election Committee composed of three (3) directors whose terms expire at the end of the current Chamber year whose duty it shall be to see that the election of directors is carried out according to the terms and conditions of these by-laws, that adequate tellers are available, that all votes of the members eligible to vote are properly tallied and canvassed, and to declare the true results of said election by written report to the Board Management & Development Committee.”

 f. Officers’ Duties: Article VIII, section 2.0 addresses officer’s duties as “The Chair shall serve as the chief elected officer of The Chamber and shall preside at all meetings of the membership, Board of Directors and Executive Committee. In addition, the Chair shall have such duties as may be specified from time to time in these Bylaws or in the Board policy manual. Subsection 2.2 Chairman Elect - Subsection 2.2 President Elect The Chair Elect shall exercise the powers and authority and perform the duties of the Chair in the absence or disability of the Chair.  In addition, the Chair Elect shall have such other duties as may be specified from time to time in the Board policy manual.  The Vice Chair shall perform such duties as assigned by the Chair and Board of Directors.  In addition, the Vice Chair shall have such other duties as may be specified from time to time in the Board policy manual. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the safeguarding of all funds received by The Chamber and for their proper disbursement.  Such funds shall be kept on deposit in financial institutions, or invested in a manner approved by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall cause a monthly financial report to be made to the Board.  In addition, the Treasurer shall have such other duties as may be specified from time to time in the Board policy manual. The President/CEO shall be the chief administrative and executive officer.  The President/CEO shall serve as secretary to the Board of Directors, and shall cause notices, agendas and minutes of meetings of the Board to be prepared. The President/CEO shall be responsible for administration of the program of work in accordance with the policies and regulations of the Board of Directors. The President/CEO shall be responsible for hiring and discharging all other employees of The Chamber.”


g. Indemnification of officers and directors: Article VII, Section 7.0 outlines indemnification as “The Chamber shall, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide for indemnification by The Chamber of any and all of its Directors, officers or former officers or Directors against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding in which they or any of them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been Directors or officers of The Chamber, except in relation to matters in which such Directors or officers have incurred such liability and expenses because the officer or Director breached or failed to perform a duty he or she owes to The Chamber and the breach or failure to perform constitutes any of the following:

1.
A willful failure to deal fairly with The Chamber or its members


in connection with the matter in which the officer or Director has


a material conflict of interest; 


2.
A violation of criminal law, unless the officer or Director had


reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was lawful or no


reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful;


3.
A transaction from which the officer or Director derived an improper


personal profit;  


4.
Willful misconduct.”


h. Membership qualifications criteria:  Article III, section 1 - 4 clearly deals with membership eligibility, classes and termination as “Any person, association, corporation, partnership or estate having an interest in the purpose of the organization shall be eligible to apply for membership. The Chamber shall recognize two (2) classes of membership, regular and honorary. Regular members shall include any person, association, corporation, partnership or estate having an interest in the purpose of the Chamber. The Board of Directors shall have the option of recognizing any individual as an honorary member of The Chamber.  The proposed candidate for honorary membership shall have a distinguished record of helping to promote and advance the purpose of this organization.  Designation of an individual as an honorary member shall require a two-thirds majority vote of the Board of Directors at any regular scheduled meeting. Honorary members shall be entitled to all rights and privileges of regular membership with the exception of voting rights.  Honorary members shall not be responsible for payment of dues.  Any member may be expelled by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting for conduct unbecoming a member or prejudicial to the purpose of The Chamber after notice and the opportunity for a hearing are afforded the member. Any member may be terminated by the Board of Directors, in accordance with the delinquency policy of The Chamber, for nonpayment of dues.”

i. Dues, resignation, delinquent accounts and expulsions:  Article IV, section 1 - 2 indicates the authority to set dues and delinquency policy. “The Board of Directors shall have the responsibility of determining the amount of annual dues for each class and type of member. Section 2.0 Delinquency -Section 2.0 - The Executive Committee shall have the responsibility to establish a dues delinquency policy for The Chamber, which shall be communicated to all members.”


j. Fiscal year:  Article V, section 3 designates September 30 as the end of the fiscal year.


k. Auditing procedure:  Section 5, under Article V requires that the chamber have an annual audit at the end of the fiscal year by a certified public accountant.  The Audit shall be available to all members.


l. Bonding requirements:  Section 6, under Article V requires the President, officers, and appropriate staff be bonded.


m. Parliamentary procedures:  Article XII provides that the current edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all questions of parliamentary procedure.


n. Dissolution clause:  Article XI, section 1 deals with the use of funds and the direction of funds upon dissolution of the Chamber. “The Chamber shall use its funds only to accomplish the objectives and purposes specified in these bylaws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed, to the members of The Chamber.  On dissolution of The Chamber, any funds remaining shall be distributed to one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific or philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.”


o. Procedure for amendments:  Article XIII, section 1.0 provides that the bylaws can be amended by a two-thirds vote of the Board or by a majority vote of the members at any regular or special meeting. “These bylaws may be amended or altered by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors, or by a majority of the members at any regular or special meeting, providing the notice for the meeting includes the proposals for amendments.  Any proposed amendments or alterations shall be submitted to the Board or the members in writing, at least five (5) days in advance of the meeting at which they are to be acted upon.”


2. All board members are provided a copy of the Chamber’s Bylaws. These are provided to each new board member and reviewed during the board orientation.


3. The Chamber’s Bylaws were amended in July 2008. At that time, legal counsel review the document. 


D.  Organization Structure


The organizational chart is attached as A 1.3. 


1.  The Chamber Organizational Chart is very clear and accurately portrays the organization.  It shows relationships between the Board, committees, affiliates and staff.  


2. The Organizational Chart outlines responsibilities of the Board and its committees, including our various advisory committees. The Chart does reflect the definition, authority and relationship of board leadership and committees. The organizational chart does not include individual names, but does identify staff positions. It is believed that is appropriate. 


3. A Chamber staff member is assigned to each component of the organizational structure by the department each is responsible for. This also reflects department responsibilities as it relates to the annual work plan.


E. Officers and Board of Directors


1. There five (5) officer that serve on the Board of Directors – Chairman, Chairman-Elect, Vice Chairman, Treasurer and Secretary. The Chairman serves as the chief elected officer of the Chamber and presides at all meetings of the membership, Board of Directors and Executive Committee. The Chairman-Elect has the powers and authority to perform the duties of the Chairman in the absence or disability of the Chairman.  The Vice Chairman performs duties as assigned by the Chairman and Board of Directors. The Treasurer is responsible for the safeguarding of all funds received by the Chamber and for their proper disbursement. The President/CEO shall be the chief administrative and executive officer.  The President/CEO serves as secretary to the Board of Directors, and shall cause notices, agendas and minutes of meetings of the Board to be prepared. 

2. The Board of Directors has 37 members and is composed of twenty-seven (27) elected and up to two (2) appointed members.  Of the elected directors, one-third shall be elected each year to serve for three (3) years.  The Chair of the Board of Directors of the Chamber has the authority to appoint a maximum of two (2) individuals, at large, to the Board who will serve a one-year term. Our two economic development organizations, Chamco Inc., and Oshkosh Area Economic Development Corporation (OAEDC) have positions on the board, along with our affiliated organizations - West Side Association, Oshkosh Arts Board, Oshkosh Safety Council, and Propel. The Board Chair of the Oshkosh Convention & Visitors Bureau has a designee to serve a one-year term, commencing on October 1, as additional voting members of the Chamber Board of Directors.


3.  The term of each Director shall commence on October 1st, continuing for three (3) years or until the Director’s successor is elected and qualified.  A Director may serve no more than three (3) consecutive terms.   A Director serving fewer than two (2) years shall not be considered to have served a term.  A Director may be re-elected after serving three (3) consecutive terms providing that such person shall not have been a Director for at least one year following the conclusion of the Director’s third term. The Chair appointees serve a one year term. The designees of our affiliates serve for the duration of the wishes on the respective affiliated organization.


4. A Director may serve no more than three (3) consecutive terms. A Director serving fewer than two (2) years shall not be considered to have served a term.  A Director may be re-elected after serving three (3) consecutive terms providing that such person shall not have been a Director for at least one year following the conclusion of the Director’s third term. The Chair appointees serve a one year term. The designees of our affiliates serve for the duration of the wishes on the respective affiliated organization.


5.  The Board’s and Board committees’ job description and primary responsibilities are attached as A 1.4.

 Set public policy positions


 Approve the Strategic Plan


 Approve the Annual Budget (operation and capital)


 Review and adopt the annual Program of Work


 Review and accept the annual audit report


 Approve new Board members  


Through its Committees, the Board manages the CEO; manages and develops its own members; and develops, as well as approves, the strategic plan. 


The Strategic Planning Committee: Responsible for the development and implementation of the organization’s strategic plan.


 Develop the Strategic Plan and recommend it to the Board


 Develop the Program of Work


 Monitor the Program of Work and report progress to the CEO Management Committee 


The CEO Management Committee: Responsible for managing the Board’s relationship with the CEO, and through the CEO, the success of the organization.


 Develop job performance expectations, with input from the Strategic Planning Committee


 Develop and implement the CEO review process


 Evaluate CEO job performance with input from Executive and Strategic Planning Committees


 Develop the compensation package for the CEO


 Recommend the process to the Board for hiring the CEO


Along with the Executive Committee, terminate the CEO, if needed.


The Board Management Committee: Responsible for assuring the Board and the board committees have structure, focus, membership, and educational opportunities that will support the board’s ability to discharge its responsibilities.


 Review and assess Board composition needs (expertise, constituency representation)


 Recommend board member nominees to the Board of Directors


 Conduct orientation of new board members


 Direct development of board members’ skills and plan continuous board education 


 Evaluate performance of current board members and act upon same, if necessary


 Recommend changes in bylaws, Board Committee structure, and relationship with Chamber affiliates.


The Executive Committee: Responsible for the conduct of board business when time constraints prohibit full board action.


 Approve operational policies within the limits of the Strategic Plan


 Communicate public policy as approved by the Board


 Recommend the annual operating and capital budget to the Board


 Review financial performance during the year


 Provide input to the CEO Management Committee on the CEO’s performance, financial and otherwise


 Recommends the financial auditing firm


The Audit Committee: Responsible for financial and operational reporting, internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and ethics. While the Board of Directors has oversight responsibilities in these areas, the Audit Committee is responsible to:


· Engage internal and external auditors 


· Initiate investigations appropriate to fulfilling its responsibilities  

· Authority to retain, at the Chamber’s expense, special legal, accounting, or other consultants or experts it deems necessary in the performance of its duties

· Recommend the financial auditing firm

6. Minutes from the three most recent Board meetings are attached as A 1.5.


Minutes are kept and recorded for all board and board committee meetings. These are provided to all board members at least one week prior to the next meeting of the Board or Committee. Additionally, since most of the Board Committees, with the exception of the Executive Committee, do not meet at a regularly prescribed time, minutes of these meetings are share with all board members as an attachment to the weekly Friday Report from the President. 


7. The Board evaluation form is attached as A 1.6.


The Board Management Committee is responsible to evaluate board member performance. As stated in item 5 above, the Board Management Committee evaluates performance of current board members and act upon same, if necessary. Through its nomination process, this committee would act on recommendations to advance the candidacy of a board member.


F. Committees

A list of Board and Advisory Committees is attached as A 1.7.


1. The committees of the Board shall be the standing committees enfranchised in the Bylaws, and ad hoc committees created from time to time by the Chairman.  The standing committees shall be: Audit, Executive; Board Management; President/CEO Management; and Strategic Planning, with such responsibilities and authority as set forth in the By-laws and the Chamber Board policy manual.   The chairs and members of standing committees shall be drawn exclusively from among the Directors, and shall be confirmed by the Board for the upcoming fiscal year. With the exception of the Board Committees, the Chamber’s other Committees are considered to be advisory to staff and are organized to advance the annual work plan. Chamber Committees are formed and organized to carry out the business plan for the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce.  The primary goal of each committee is to analyze and investigate issues, collect information, and make informed recommendations to the Board of Directors for their consideration.  Chamber Committees have authority to carry out activities as may be delegated to them by the Board or outlined in the Chamber’s annual business plan.  The authority is limited to making policy recommendations to the Board of Directors.  No action by a committee shall be binding until it has been approved or ratified by the Board of Directors. Chamber Committees are accountable for setting objectives and carrying out these objectives that further the Chamber’s annual business plan pertaining to their respective committee.  On a semi-annual basis, Chamber Committee Chairpersons report directly to the Board of Directors.  This report pertains to the progress of their committee’s activities in implementing the Chamber’s business plan.   


Section 1. Governance Additional Criteria

A. Vision and Values


1. The Vision Statement is outlined in the Application. Our Chamber does not have a Values Statement document.


2. The Vision Statement is reviewed by the Board of Directors as part of the Strategic Planning process. 


B. Officers and Board of Directors

1. In July 2008, the Board of Directors amended its bylaws to better reflect the current make-up of the Chamber membership. The current make-up of the total membership is:


Manufacturing - 9% of members, 17% of dues, 31% of FT equiv. employees

Retail - 28% of members, 23% of dues, 18% of FT equiv. employees

Service - 63% of members, 60% of dues, 51% of FT equiv. employees

Therefore, the Board adopted the following amendment to ARTICLE VII, tc \l1 "
ARTICLE VII
Board of DirectorsSection 1.0 Composition of the Board:


 “The nine (9) new members elected to the Board of Directors each year shall reflect the composition of the current membership based upon the number of members, amount of total dues and total number of full-time equivalent employees in each business sector of Manufacturing, Retail and Service.” 

2. Annually, the Chamber conducts a Board member orientation for all newly elected and appointed Directors.  New Board members are provide a Director’s Manual showing the organization of the Chamber, membership, staff and committee structure, strategic plan, annual business plan and operating budget, bylaws, previous year’s Board meeting minutes, and list of Board members and officers.  The Chair of the Chamber Board of Directors presides over this orientation.  The Chair outlines the responsibilities and role of the Board of Directors.


Board Orientation Agenda is attached as A 1.8.


3. Board members are responsible for being actively involved in the board and board committee meetings in order to advance the mission of the organization.


 Specific responsibilities include:


 Understand and promote the mission of the organization


 Attend board meetings


 Maintain confidentiality of board meetings as appropriate


 Exercise prudence in the control and transfer of organization funds and resources


 Promote the organization in the community


 Participate in one of  the organization’s board committees


 Follow trends in the organization’s field


 Avoid acting individually on board responsibilities


 Help maintain the board’s focus on “board level” issues

Additionally, at most Board meeting, at least one agenda item is devoted to Board member education or information. This agenda items is generally a community issue or project that Board members need to be aware of and understand. This educational component is intended to keep Board members aware of current community issues and/or activities so that they can speak knowledgably when out in the public. However, the official spokesperson for the Chamber is either the President/CEO and/or the Chairman of the Board as it relates to public policy. On occasion, a Board member may be the Chamber’s designee to speak on an issue.


4. The Board Management Committee primary responsibilities is to review and assess Board composition needs (expertise, constituency representation) and recommend board member nominees to the Board of Directors. Through this process the Committee is obligate to recommend to the Board the mix of desired characteristics of board members and work with appointing entities to identify potential board members. 


5. Nominations are solicited through the general membership, along with identifying board candidates from the leadership ranks of our committee structure and the Leadership Oshkosh Program. We employ all means necessary to recruit potential member boards, including Newsletters, emails, personal invitations, etc.


6. Background checks are not performed for prospective Board members. Being a relatively small community, it would be a very rare situation that someone would not have any knowledge of a questionable background of a prospective board member. 

7. References are not requested or checked for prospective board members. 


8. When a individual is being consider for board membership, a member of the existing Board will discuss their candidacy to determine the degree of interest a prospective board has in serving the organization and to ascertain their understanding of board membership expectations.


9. While there are no contractual agreements with Board members, there is a good understanding of Board expectations. Annually, all Board members sign a Conflict of Interest disclosure to make the Board aware of any potential conflicts.

10. Article VII, section 4.0 outlines the Board’s attendance policy, “The Board shall have the power to declare a vacancy in the Directorship of any Director who is absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board, unless the Director is confined by illness or other absence approved by the Chair of the Board. Article VII, section 4.0 partially addresses removal as “Vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors or among the officers on account of death, disability, resignation, or removal prior to the conclusion of a term shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining Directors, and persons so elected shall serve until the end of the unfilled term of their predecessor.” Section 9.0 also addresses this, “Any member of the Board of Directors may resign as a member of the Board by submitting a letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board.  At the next scheduled Board of Directors meeting following the receipt of the letter of resignation, the Chair shall inform the Board of the member’s resignation.  The vacancy caused by such resignation shall be filled in accord with Section 4.0 of this Article.”

C. Committees

1. Committee Chairperson and committee members are chosen because of their professional expertise or previous activity in the area of work of the committee.  Selection of the Chairperson is done informally based on involvement on the committee and/or their expertise and interest in the topic area. The Chairperson meets either with the Chamber’s President or the assigned staff member to discuss the activities and goals of the committee.  The first committee meeting is designed to match the program objectives, as assigned by the Chamber Board of Directors, to the work of the committee relative to the annual business plan.  Committee members come from the general membership of the Chamber based upon their general interest and knowledge in the work of the committee.   


2. Orientation of the Committee Chairpersons takes place at the time of the appointment is made to the committee or when the committee is formed.  The orientation is done by the President or the assigned Chamber staff.  At this time, the annual business plan is reviewed with specific discussion of the activities that are the responsibility of the particular committee.  The budget that relates to the committee is also reviewed.  

3. Discussion is held regarding the role of the committee in advancing the Chamber annual program of work, along with the committee’s relationship to the Board of Directors.  It is explained that at least annually, the committee chair is responsible for reporting to the Board on their activities. Chairpersons are also informed that they are directly responsible to represent their committee during the Chamber’s strategic planning process.


4. Committee minutes are maintained and recorded after each committee meeting.


6. Each committee is evaluated annually as part of the strategic planning process.  Chamber staff may make recommendations to change, alter or discontinue a Chamber committee.  Ultimately, it is the responsibility of the Board to determine and evaluate committee performance.  Continuation of committees is dependent upon their need in carrying out the Chamber’s annual business plan.


7. There have been times when it was advantageous for committees to meet electronically due to time and/or scheduling constraints, although our preferred meeting method would be face-to-face. Communication with committee members is done very efficiently through email. We offer and operate a number of ListServ programs designed to keep members of certain interest groups involved and informed.


8. No committees have been disbanded in the last three years. 


D.  Affiliates


1. The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce has five affiliated organizations.  The following are those affiliates:  Oshkosh Safety Council, Westside Association, Propel, and Oshkosh Arts. 

Oshkosh Safety Council: Provides programming to their members with respect to industrial safety and health issues.  Their health and safety programs provide a valuable resource to the Chamber and advance our effectiveness by promoting membership in the Chamber.


Propel:  This is the young professional network that the Chamber has been instrumental in organizing. Propel exists to foster the community’s young professional by creating relationship and networks, cultivating leadership and providing an avenue to shape the future of Oshkosh.


Westside Association:  The retail association, consisting of business located on the west side of Oshkosh, develops retail promotions. The programming of the organization promotes the Chamber’s program of work through the promotion of retail activity.   


Oshkosh Arts:  The arts organization, consisting of community arts and cultural groups, coordinate their performances and develop a schedule to promote their activities.  The promotion activities of the association support the Chamber’s program of work and enhance the quality of life in the community.


a. The Chamber provides a staff member for each affiliate. The staff member serves primarily as a liaison between the Chamber and the affiliate.


b. There annual budget, revenue and expense, is audited by our certified professional accounting firm and included in the Chamber’s annual audit. All affiliates operate under the Chamber’s tax-exempt status.  Their functions are compatible with the stipulations under which the IRS granted our tax-exempt status.  Their income is reported on our 990 filing.  Each affiliated organization has a budget independent of the Chamber. The source of all Chamber-affiliate’s income comes from membership income. The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors does not approve the affiliate’s budget. 

c. Each affiliated organization has a separate governing board.  Their relationship to the Chamber Board is a formal annual report that includes a statement of revenues and expenditures including a beginning and ending cash balance;  list of their board members and officers; documentation of their activities; copies of any amendments to their bylaws; name of all bank accounts, along with the person responsible for them, account numbers and employer ID number used; copies of all meeting minutes; and information regarding any commitments of contingent liabilities and pledges made.  Each of these affiliated organizations has a representative that has an ex officio position on the Chamber Board.  These members are also voting members. Over the past several years, the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce has made an effort to develop consistent policy relative to financial accountability and relationship between the Chamber and our affiliated organizations.  There is not policy accountability to the Chamber. All affiliates listed above have independent budgets.  The Chamber Board does not approve their budgets.  
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File Attachment
GOVERNANCE - Section 1.DOC


"Indemnification: The Accrediting Board requires the indemnification of officers and directors be stated
in the bylaws. Indemnification is a financial protection provided by a chamber to its directors, officers,
and employees against expenses and liabilities incurred by them in lawsuits alleging that they breached
some duty in their service on behalf of the chamber. For sample bylaws including an indemnification
clause, refer to the best practices Web page at

http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/best practices.htm Return to Page 11

" Bonding requirements: The Accrediting board recommends that the chamber have bonding
requirements to further protect the chamber from financial crimes. Employee and/or board dishonesty
insurance may substitute for bonding requirements, but it is at the discretion of the Accrediting board as
to whether the policy meets this requirement. Return to Page 11

" Dissolution clause: The Accrediting Board requires that a dissolution clause be included in the
bylaws. A dissolution clause makes provisions as to what should happen if the chamber is dissolved.
For sample bylaws including a dissolution clause, refer to the best practices Web page at
http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/best practices.htm Return to Page 11

" Organization chart: An organization chart is a chart which depicts the chamber’s governance
structure. The organization chart should have definitions of leadership, names of staff, lines of authority,
and a listing of staff responsibilities. For sample organization charts, refer to the best practices Web
page at http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/best practices.htm Return to Page 12

¥ Board evaluation form or criteria: The Accrediting Board requires the applicant to develop written
criteria or evaluation forms that are used to evaluate the board of directors. For sample board evaluation
materials, refer to the best practices Web page at
http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/best practices.htm Return to Page 12

v Vision statement: Outlines what a chamber is looking to be. It concentrates on future and provides
clear decision-making criteria. Return to Page 13

Vi Values statement: Main values protected by the organization and reflected in the organization's
culture and priorities Return to Page 13

Vil Affiliate: An entity that is related to the chamber, but not completely controlled by the chamber.
Return to Page 15
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	EQ#1: During our last strategic planning process three major strategic themes – 1) Economic Development, 2) Communications, Vision and Branding and 3) Membership Services – emerged, causing the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce to lead new initiatives and embark on a new strategic direction for the organization.

Economic Development:

Recognizing the need to better integrate the community’s economic development activities, the Oshkosh Chamber and its Board of Directors spent much time during the past year pursuing options for a Business Assistance Center.  The idea for the center grew out of further collaboration between the Chamber and many of its partners, including the Oshkosh Area Economic Development Corp. (OAEDC), Chamco and complementary organizations.  The new center would expand and enhance the delivery of business assistance services and provide greater efficiency to the partners as they share office support, equipment and facilities. The Chamber’s current office building provides limited room for future growth for any of the partners that are now under one roof—the Oshkosh Chamber, OAEDC and Chamco. While the Chamber’s leadership looked at several possibilities for expansion, it was most interested in being an equity partner with Akcess Acquisition Group, which proposed office space in the Marion Road development area.  The Chamber’s hope was to help Akcess launch the entire project, which would have spurred other development, including a hotel, a restaurant and condominiums.  Unfortunately, Akcess was not able to bring its vision to fruition due to the lackluster economy.  However, the Chamber continues to pursue options for expanding its office space and developing the Business Assistance Center. However, the Oshkosh Chamber did our own bit of reconstruction in order to welcome Chamco, Inc., into the building. Chamco moved into the Chamber building in February 2008 to join the Chamber and OAEDC in creating a seamless economic development delivery system under one roof. Having all three economic development organizations under one roof is a key to bringing economic development in Oshkosh to the next level—we are in a position to provide even more outstanding service to the community.

A key community initiative came to fruition with the opening of the newly renovated Oshkosh Convention Center. Construction began in summer 2008 to refurbish the Oshkosh Convention Center.  The project is an integral part of downtown redevelopment efforts and promises to boost tourism and the Oshkosh economy.  The Oshkosh Chamber commissioned a feasibility study several years ago that led to the center’s upgrade.  The Chamber supported this project so that the city can attract more conventions and attract the attention of meeting planners.  With more bookings at the center, downtown and the rest of the community would benefit from dollars spent at hotels, restaurants and stores.  

Communications, Visioning and Branding:

When the Oshkosh Chamber’s Board of Directors adopted the organization’s 2008-2009 Strategic Plan, it took into consideration our members’ desire to create a vision and a brand for our community.  The strategy calls for partnering with key stakeholders and opinion leaders to undertake a coordinated effort to achieve a plan to brand and market the community and improve its image both internally and externally.

To help achieve that goal, the Oshkosh Chamber is now one of nine partners working toward developing a vision for Oshkosh.  The Chamber has a seat at the steering committee’s table, along with the Oshkosh Area Community Foundation, the Oshkosh Convention & Visitors Bureau, the University of Wisconsin Oshkosh, the City of Oshkosh, Propel, the Oshkosh Northwestern, Bethel Homes and Mercy Medical Foundation.

Each organization that makes up the steering committee has committed dollars to fund the process.  Members hired A. Nelessen Associates, a firm from New Jersey that will guide us through the process.  In March, the firm’s president, Tony Nelessen, visited Oshkosh and asked nearly 200 people during a session at the Hilton Garden Inn what they thought needed to happen to help Oshkosh reach its full potential.  Answers ranged from enhancing our downtown to attracting higher-wage jobs to ensuring our kids get a quality education.  Since then, two more community sessions have taken place and thousands of Oshkosh residents have been surveyed on their vision for the future.  The hope is that we have a plan in place by mid-June.

The point of this extensive exercise is to create a city that is vibrant, economically strong and attractive to all age groups.  As one person said at the initial March meeting, we want to be the “most talked about” city in the state of Wisconsin.  It is important that we create a vision that focuses not only on land use and economic development, but also the arts, education, the introduction of higher-wage jobs, wellness and human services, to name a few.

This roadmap of where we are going as a community and the image we portray to residents and non-residents will lead to a second phase—branding.  During that phase, we will develop a community brand.  The brand will include the brand image, logos and tag lines that define and unify our city.  The brand also is an experience and should invoke a positive emotion when people think of or visit our city.

The vision and brand we create today will not be completed in the next year or two, but in the next decade or two.  It is meant for the betterment of the next generation and the long-term future of our city.  

Membership Services:

The Chamber Board determined that it needs to re-evaluate its efforts and actions relating to public affairs and issue-based advocacy. Consequently, in addition to its annual Washington, DC Fly-In and Madison Drive-In, the Board initiated the Oshkosh Chamber Prosperity Project and the formation of an Oshkosh Chamber Conduit. Both of these programs will result in our membership being better informed and engaged in the legislative and political process.

The Oshkosh Chamber Prosperity Project - The Oshkosh Chamber has teamed with the Wisconsin Manufacturers and Commerce to connect its members with federal and state government officials.  Through Prosperity Project website, members will be able to access information about pending legislation and express their opinion on the legislation and other issues. The Prosperity Project provides Voter's Guides on races for Congress and State Legislature to help members make informed decisions at the polls.
The Prosperity Project is a partnership of Oshkosh Chamber businesses, The State Chamber, trade associations, and other local chambers of commerce dedicated to keeping members informed on pending legislation and directly linked with state and federal legislative representatives. 

Oshkosh Chamber Conduit – In Wisconsin, a conduit an organization that receives money from individuals, deposits it in a financial institution, and then transfers those contributions to candidates who are seeking elected office selected by the original contributor.  The conduit organization does not exercise any discretion over the amount or the ultimate recipient of these contributions.  The conduit is a way for the Chamber to further engage itself in political activities without necessarily directing contributions on behalf of the organization.  

	EQ#2: Annually, the Oshkosh Chamber recognizes volunteers at the Annual Meeting & Recognition Program. At this event, the Chamber gives out the following awards: 
Alberta S. Kimball Community Service Award
Ambassador of the Year
Chamber Volunteer of the Year
Distinguished Service Award
Lynne Webster Leadership Award
PALs Award
Small Business of the Year
Stephen Mosling Commitment to Education Award
Woman of Achievement
Members are honored at this event for accomplishments and service to the Chamber and the community. Each individual is given a plague during the Annual Meeting, an event attended by over 600 business people. Our award winners are featured in our bi-monthly NewsWave Magazine. The local newspaper also features these individuals. We promote these award winners on our website - http://www.oshkoshchamber.com/annualmeeting. 
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